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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE STRATEGIC REPORT
) For the year ended 31 December 2019

Principal activity and review of the business

The principal activities of StarStone Insurance Services Limited {“the Company™} are the provision of services and
expense processing administrator on behalf of the 5tarStone group of companies (*StarStone Group”).

The Company is authorised by the financial Conduct Authority {“FCA™) as an intermediary and as such receives
premiums and pays claims as a coverholder. It recharges costs relating to the introduction of business to StarStone
Insurance SE (“SISE™) and StarStone Underwriting Limited {"SUL") as managing agent for Lloyd's Syndicate 1301,

Results and performance

The results of the Company for the year, as set out on page 12, show a loss before tax of USD 418,000 (2018: toss USD
491,000},

Key performance indicators

Key performance indicators, which are monitored by the director during the production of quarterly management
accounts, are as follows;

Year ended Year ended

31 Decembier 31 December

2019 2018

S0 000 uso 000

Turnover . 63,336 13,935
Operating Profit 882 {201)
Intercompany debtors 11,307 5134
Operating cash 12,067 8,939

Turnover constitutes staff salary costs recharged to affiliated entities and fees charged for payment processing services.
The increase in Turnover is due to higher costs, primarily attributable to higher staff costs and general administrative
expenses processed by the Company which were processed by other group companies in 2018, please refer to note 18
for more details on staff costs.

Future Developments

The Director confirms that the Company wilt continue to administer and provide services to StarStone Group. All services
and expenses are paid far by the Cornpany and then recharged ta the group companies.

Enstar Group, the ultimate parent company, announced on 10 June 2020 that it will place Syndicate 1301, Si5E and
StarStone insurance Bermuda Limited {“SIBL") into immediate run-off. The Company’s operations will remain in place
to serve the needs of policyholders of Syndicate 1301, SISE and SIBL and ensure that the companies continue to meet
all regulatory requirements. Whilst the expected compietion date of the run-off is uncertain, the management tearn is
working tlosely with the regulators to ensure the Group's operations are run-off in an orderly manner.
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ﬁ STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE STRATEGIC REPORT — continued
for the year ended 31 December 2019

The Company's activities are not expected to change in the foreseeable future; however, the aperations of the Company
are expected to decrease.

Covid-19

The outbreak of the CCVID-19 globa! pandemic during the first gquarter of 2020 has caused significant and
unprecedented econormic and financial turmoil globally. In response to the outbreak of the Coronavirus pandemic
{COVID-18), the Company has successfully implemented its Business Continuity Plan with all staff working from home
with minimal disruption to its day-to-day operations. Due to the global uncertainty, it is too early to predict the langer-
term effects of the pandemic on the Company. The scope, duration and magnitude of the direct and indirect effects of
the COVID-19 pandemic are changing rapidly and are difficult to anticipate.

The directors have considered the impact on the Company being a service company which relies on recharges from
other group companies. The recharge agreements in placed have not been affected, therefore there is no risk to the
recoverability of costs incurred. In addition, an assessment of scenarios and potential range of outcomes has been
undertaken by management across StarStone Group, including exposure to the broader ecanomic environment and
increased volatility in financial markets. The Company continue to closely manitor the impact on their operations and
capital. The impact on the Company's financial position 1o date has been limited and is expected to continue to be
limited.

Brexit

Following the EU Referendum in June 2016, pursuant to the exit process triggered under Article 50 of the Treaty on
European Union in March 2017 and the ratification of the withdrawal agreement by the UK government and the EU
{through the Council of Ministers}, the UK ceased to be a member of the EU and the European Economic Area (‘EEA’)
on 31 lanuary 2020 (‘Brexit’) and entered 2 transition period, currently due to expire on 31 December 2020. During this
transition period, the UX retains the benefits of membership of the EU’s internal market and the customs union but
loses its representation in the EU’s institutions and its role in EU decision-making.

The UK and LU are currently seeking to determine the terms of their future relationship by the end of the transition
period, and the resulting econornic, trading and iegal relationships with both the EU and other counterparties currently
remain unclear and subjett to significant uncertainty. If the UK and EU do not agree a new comprehensive trade
agreement by the end of the transition period and the transition period is not extended, then, subject 10 separate
agreements being made with third countries, the UK would be expected te operate on basic World Trade Organization
terms, the autcome of which for the Company would be similar in certain respects to a ‘no-deal’ Brexit, and which may
result in, amongst others, loss of access to the EU single market for goods and services, the imposition of import duties
and controls on trade between the UK and the EU and related trade disruption.

The Company acts as interna! service tompany and emplaying entity for employees located in Continental turope. This
should be unatfected by Brexit, but the Company also holds agreements with Lioyd’s and operates as service company
coverholder. The StarStone Group has set-up of a new company in Continental Europe to assume the status of service
company coverhofder in Continental Europe from 1 January 2019.

with effect from 1 January 2019, the Company will no longer enter into a contract or contracts of insurance to be
underwritten by StarStone Gfoup in Continental Europe.

Key developments in the year

The Company sold its 28.5% shareholding of Objective which was held under the Joint Venture Agreemeal with
Objective on 151 May 2019.
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE STRATEGIC REPORT ~ continued
’ For the year ended 31 December 2019

On 31st July 2018, SISL entered into an agreement with Agent 2ero Group Pty Ltd {*AZG") to sefl their 1 fully paid
ordinary share held in Starstone Underwriting Australia Pty L1d ("SUAL") for AUD 1. The sale was completed on 31st July
2019. As part of the sale, the existing share capital was reduced from AUD 500,000 to AUD 1, by cancelling 499,999
ordinary shares held by SISL. in addition, a dividend of USD 162,000 was made from SUAL to SISL prior to the sale.

The StarStane Group sold their ownership of Malakite which was 80% owned by the Company and the Aviation portfolio
of SISE 1o elseco Ltd {elseca) on 15th May 2019. In exchange for the sale of Malakite and the Aviation portfolio, the
StarStone Group received $1m of deferred consideration which is due 36 months after the completion date and stock
purchase warrants within elseco.

In October 2018, as part of the liquidation process of Torus Business Solutions Private Limited {"TBSPL"], the Cempany
wrote down the carrying value of the investrnent by USD 77,000.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risk categories and uncertainties facing the Company arise from two sources:

1. The Company is dependent on other members of the group, principally SUL, as managing agent for Lioyd's
Syndicate 1301, SISE and StarStone Insurance Bermuda Limited (“SIBL"), for its turnover in terms of expense
administration service fees received. As such, risks that are inherent to the operation of other group members
alsa impact the Company. These are cutlined in the financial statements of each entity, copies of which can be
obtalned from the registered office of this Company.

2. Risks resuiting from its own activities. The activities of the Company itself give rise to certain risks which are
outlined below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amaunts in fulf, when due. The risk is mitigated by strong
credit contral procedures resulting in a low residual risk, as indicated by the Company’s bad debt history.

Group risk

Group risk is the risk of loss to the Company arising from it membership of StarStone Group and Enstar Group. Group
risk is mitigated through the monitoring of StarStone Group and Enstar Group financial strength and business strategy
developments.

Liquidity risk

tiquidity risk is the risk of loss to the Company arising from the Company having insufficient liguid assets to meet all
cashflow commitments as and when they fall due. Currently all funds are held in cash, which is immediately accessible.

Operational risk

This is the risk that error caused by people, processes or systems lead to losses to the entities, This risk is mitigated
through a system of documented, monitored and tested controls.
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‘ﬁv STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE STRATEGIC REPORT ~ continued
R for the year ended 31 December 2019

Currency risk

Although the Company's income is mainly invoiced and received In US dollars, expenses are incurred in a mixture of US
dofiars, Sterling and Euro. The Company has 2 currency risk where these non-US doilar expenses are affected by foreign
exchange movements.

Health and safety

The Company takes its responsibilities seriously with regards to the health and safety of its employees. All employees
are made aware of the Company's Employment Manual whith contains reference 1o work station training, company
contributions to eye tests, details of qualified first aiders, emergency procedures and other general heaith and safety
matters.

Promoting the success of the Company

The Director has complied with their responsibility under Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in goed faith
and promaote the success of the Company for the benefit of sharehoiders as a whole.

The Company is firmly committed to high standards of corporate governance and maintaining a sound framework for
the contro) and mmanagement of the business. The Board recognises that effective governance s key to the
implementation of strategy for our shareholder and wider stakeholders. Section 172 considerations are embedded in
decision making at Board level and throughout StarStone Group. In so doing, the Director has considered the broader
matters as set out below.

The likely consequences of any decision in the long term

The Company has a strategy to conduct the run-off of business in a discipfined and orderly manner to efficiently
discharge the liabilities associated with the business while preserving and maximising its assets for the benefit of the
shareholder.

The Company has an appropriate system of Governance in place along with an established risk management framework
and internal control system to ensure the fong-term success of the Company for the henefit of all stakeholders. A
business plan is prepared annuatly, and progress is monitored throughout the year against objectives. A forward-looking
assessment of the Company is maintained and strategie decisions, including capital needs, are assessed in accordance
with the risk management framework.

The Interests of the Company’'s employees

The Company employs staff in Continental Europe. The Company aims to be a supportive and inclusive empioyer.

The success of the Company depends on the coflective talfent, skills and values of its employees. The Comparny is
committed to employee engagement at all levels, examples of employee engagement initiatives during 2019 include:

»  Providing employees with information on matters than concern them through corporate communications and
Town Hall meetings.
»  Encouraging the involvement of employees int eh Company's performance.
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* STARSTONE {INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE STRATEGIC REPORT — continued
TR For the year ended 31 December 2019

s Achieving common awareness of the financial and economic factors impacting the performance of StarStone
Group thought the quarterly all staff updates.

Qversight of performance and development is managed on an ongoing basis and formalised at least annually. The
strategic priorities are cascaded down to individual within the business through objective setting and monitoring.

The need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

The Company works closely with its suppliers and customers as the Company relies on its supply chain to ensure it
operates successfully. StarStone aims to build strong relationships with suppliers and customers so it can maximise costs
efficiencies and alignment with its strategies. The Company strives to maintain the highest standards of conduct in
treating its suppliers and customers in a fair and honest manner. StarStone’s procurement function continues to focus
on supplier engagernent and liaison with suppliers, ensuring prompt payments made to our suppliers,

The impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment
The Company has a strong culture of supporting its staff in both individual and group volunteering and fundraising

initiatives. We believe that our success as a business is based on the need to make a positive investment in both staff
and the community. Fundamentally the Company believe that embracing sustainable practices leads to better corporate

culture.

The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

As a regulated entity by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), the Company complies with the mandated regulatory
requirements and best practice recommendation. The Company seeks to achieve and maintain a reputation for

demonstrating a high standard of business conduct. The Company also maintains an open dialogue with key executives
actively engaging in regular update meetings.

The need to act fairly between members of the Company

The Company provides regular reporting to and communication to its uitimate parent, Enstar Group Limited. The
strategic direction of the Company is aligned with group objectives.

By order of the board

Udo Pickartz
Director

3 July 2020
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
STARSTONE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2019
The Director present his report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Share capital

All of the ordinary shares of the Company are owned by StarStone Insurance Bermuda Uimited {“S1BL"), a company
incorporated under the laws of Bermuda.

Dividends

The Directar does not recommend the payment of a dividend and the retained earnings has been transferred to
shareholder's funds. {2018: USD nil)

Directors
Names of directors who served during the period are listed on page 1.
indemnity insurance

A policy of indemnity insurance cover to the benefit of the directors of the company has been in force during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and at the date of this report.

Golng concern

The Director cansider that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements on 3 going concern hasis, please
refer to Note 1 Accounting Policies - Basis of preparation on page 15.

No materia! uncertainties that cast significant doubt about the ability of the Company 10 continue as a going concern
have been identified by the director.

Statement of disclosure of Information to auditor
The Director at the date of this report confirms that:

1) So far as the Director is aware, there is no information relevant to the audit of the Company's financial statements of
which the auditor is unaware; and

2) The Director has taken ali steps that he ought to have taken In his duty as a Director in order to make himself aware
of any relevant audit information and 1o establish that the Company's auditot is aware of that information,
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE DIRECTOR’S REPORT ~ continued
A For the year ended 31 December 2019

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will
therefore continue in office.
By order of the board

[N R SR M AP &

Udao Pickart2
Director

7th Floor

One Creechurch Place
London

EC3A 5AY

3 July 2020
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES
R For the year ended 31 December 2019

Statement of Director’'s Responsibilities in r
statements

of the Strategic report, the Director’s report and the financial

The director is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Director’s Report and the financial stetements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the director
has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicabte law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland.

Under company law the director must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give 2 true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the director is reguired to;

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

®  assess the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and .

« use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explein the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial staterents comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is responsible for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.
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STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

1 { INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
STARSTONE STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of StarStone Insurance Services Limited ("the Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2319 which comprise the statement of profit and loss account and other comprehensive income, balance
sheet, staterment of changes in equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 3.

in our opinion the financial statements:
»  give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its loss for the
year then ended;
«  have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
s  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) (“i15As (UK)") and applicable law,
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of
the Company in accordance with, UX ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Campany or to cease its operations, and as they have conciuded that the Company’s financial position means that this
is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over
its ability to continue as a gaing concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements {"the
going concern period”}.

We are reguired 10 report 1o you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. in our evaluation of the directors’
conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company’s business model and analysed how those risks might
affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have
nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that
are incansistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a
material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guerantee that the Company will continue in operation.

Other information

The drectors are responsible for the other infarmation, which comprises the strategic report and the directors’ report,
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or, except as expticitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements
audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit
knowledge. Based solely on that work:

we have not identified material misstatements in the other information;

* in our opinion the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year is
consistent with the financial statements; and

* in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
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STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

: : INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
M STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED — continued
) o for the year ended 31 December 2019

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our epinion:

s adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; ar

*  certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

We have nothing to report in these respects.
Directars’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 9, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, such interna! control as they determine
is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from materiat misstatement, whether due
1o fraud or error; assessing the Company’s abllity to continue 2s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the
Company of 10 cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free fram
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's feport. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK} will
always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
raterial if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.fre.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibllities

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to themin an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assumne responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Wdens

David Maddams (Senlor Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chortered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

£14 5GL

3 July 2020
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R For the year ended 31 December 2019

Company Number

06414328 -

" Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
. 2019 2018
Notes © USDO0O USO 000
Turnover 4 - E?.aa's - 13,935
Administrative expenses 5 : (62,454} {14,136)
Operating profit [ 882 {201)
Interest receivable and similar income 183 96

Other expenses {19)
impairment of investments 10411 (910) {186)
Net fareign exchange ioss {554) (201)
Loss before tax [418) (492)
Tax charge on loss ] {20) {534}
Loss for the year after tax {438) {1,026)
Loss for the year (438} {1,026)

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year {4318) {1,026)

The result above is derived from continuing activities,

The accounting policies and accompanying notes on pages 15 to 28 form part of these financial statements.
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STARSTONE

STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Company Number
06414328

Flued assets
Tanglble assets
Investments in group undertaking
investments in jointly ventures

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at hank and in kand
Prepayments and accrued income

Current Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Provisions for iiabllities and charges
Accruals

Net current assels
Net assets

Capital & reserves
Called up share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserves
Shareholders' funds

Notes

10
11

12

14

16

17

31 December

2019

UsSo 000
9,71%
3,059

12,779
14,192
18,118
1,759
34,069
{19,906)
{9,020}
{28,926)

5,143

17,922
———

40
652
17,230
17,922

227
4,411
218

7,334
18,824
118

26,276

{11,101}
(245)
(1,486}

(12,832)

31 Decemnber
2018

UsO 000

4,916

13,444

18,360

40
1,090
17,230
18,360

The accounting policies and accompanying notes on pages 15 to 28 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2020 and signed on their behalf by

Udo Pickartz
Director
3 july 2020

Page | 13



* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
© For the year ended 31 December 2019

Calied-up Other © ' Retained

share capital reserves earnings: . TOTAL

USD 000 USD 000 Uso odo . . UsSD 000

At 1 January 2018 a0 13,592 . 2,116 15,748

Total comprehensive loss for the year . - {1,026) {1,026
Capital contribution received in respect of interest

waivad on boan from SHL* 0 3,638 - 3,638

At 1 January 2019 &0 17,236 1,090 18,360

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - {438} (438)

At 31 Decemnber 2019 40 17,230 €52 127,922

* in June 2018, SIBL waived USD 3,638,000 of loan interest via a deed of release and the waived interest is treated as
capital contribution from the parent. The loan carried interest ai a rate of 2.5% plus Libor per annum.

The accounting policies and accompanying notes on pages 15 to 28 form part of these financial statements.

Page | 14



ﬁ " STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: ‘ For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Basis of Preparation

StarStone Insurance Services Limited {“the Company") is a company limiied by shares and incorporated and domiciled
in the UK. The financia! statements are presented far the year ended 31 December 2019.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Section 396 of the Companies Act
2006 and Schedule 1 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Actounts and Reports) Regulations 2008,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include certain items at
fair value, and In accordance with Financiat Reporting Standard 102 {FRS 102} as issued by the Financial Reporting
Council.

The financia) statements are presented in United States Dollars (“USD"} which is the presentation and functional
currency of the Company. All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest USD thousand.

The Company's smallest higher group of companies for which group accounts are drawn up is SIBL. SIBL includes the
Company in its cansolidated financial statements. Therefore, the Company is exempt by virtue of section 401 of the
Companies Act 2006 from the raquirements to prepare consolidated financial statement.

The consolidated financial statements of SIBL are prepared in accordance with accounting principies generally accepted
in the United States of America (US GAAP) and are available to the public.

The Company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of FRS 102) and has applied the exemptions
available under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:

e FRS 102 Section 3 Financial Statement [4.12 {a)(iv)] and Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Cash Flow
Statement and related notes

*« FRS 102 Section 4 Statement of Financia! Position [3.17(d)]: Reconciliation of the number of shares putstanding
frorn the beginning to end of the period

= FR$ 102 Section 26 [18{b)] and (23] share based payment related disclosures

e« FRS 102 Section 33 Related Party Disclosures {33.7]: Related party transactions with key manggement
personnei compensation

The Campany has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 102 Section 33 Related party Disclosures {33.1 Al to
not disclose related party tramsactions with wholly gwned subsidiaries of StarStone and Enstar Group.

Going concern

In preparing these financial statements, the director has considered the uncertainty created by COVID 19. The evolving
COVID 19 pandemic has caused significant disruption to the economy and financial markets globally, and the full extent
of the potential impacts of COVID-19 are not yet known.

Whilst there are many unknowns and the future impact of the pandemic is difficult to predict, the Company is taking
proactive action in line with the wider Group and successfully implemented its Business Continuity Plan with al staff
waorking from hame with minimal disruption to its day-to-day operations.

In agdition, the director considered the impact of the announcement made by Enstar Group to place Syndicate 1301,
$ISE and $IBL into immediate and orderly run-off. Appropriate operations will remain in place to serve the needs of
policyholders of Syndicate 1304, SISE and SIBL and ensure that the companies continue to meet all regulatory
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  novES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
o For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Basis of Preparation [continued)

requirements. As a result, the expected completion date of the run-off is uncertain.

The directors have considered the impact on the Company being a service company which relies on recharges from
other group companies. The recharge agreements in placed have not been affected, therefore there is no risk to the
recoverability of costs incurred. In addition, an assessment of scenarios and potential range of outcomes has been
undertaken by management across 5tarStone Group, including exposure to the broader economic environment and
increased volatility in financial markets. The Company continue to closely monitor the impact on their operations and
capital. The impact on the Company's financial position to date has been limited and is expected to continue to be
limited.

The director is confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due

for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

2. Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, the Director of the Company has made judgements, estimates and assurnptions
that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed oh an ongoing
basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

The principal risks and uncertainties of the business have been discussed within the Strategic Report on page 4.
Judgements made by the director, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note
3.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Investments

Investments in group undertakings and jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment. The Company
makes an assessment at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that investments in group
undertakings may be impaired.

Turpover

Turnover represents expenses that have been recharged to group companies on an accrual basis and coverholder
commission for intermediary activities performed on behalf of StarStone Underwriting Limited Syndicate 1301. Expense
recharges are recoghised when the services concerned have been performed. Mark up on salary and benefits expenses
is charged at 8%. Coverholder commission is deferred and recognised as turnover over the same period and on the
same basis as the related premiums in Syndicate 1301 are earned. Mark up On gross written premiums relating to the
coverholder commission is charged at 5%.
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  noTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Administrative

All expenses are charged on an accrual basis.
Fin § igbilitles

In applying FAS 102, the Company has chosen to apply the recognition and measurement provisions of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement {as adopted for use in the EU).

Classification

The accounting classification of financial assets and Fabilities determines the way in which they are measured and
changes in those values are presented in the statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets and liabilities are
ciassified on their initial recognition. Subsequent reclassifications are permitted only in restricted circumstances.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income comprise financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as such on initial recognition. The Company has no
financiaf assets or financial liabifities designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Depaosits with credit institutions, debtors, and accrued interest are classified as loans and receivables.

Recognition

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party ta the contractual provisions of the
instrurnent. Financial assets are derecognised it the Company's contractua! rights 1o the cash faws frant the lingncial
assets expire or if the Company transfers the financia! asset to another party without retaining control of substantially
all risks and rewards of the assets. A financial liability is derecognised when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or expired.

Measurement

A fingneial asset or financial liability is measured initialty at faic value glus, for a financial asset or financial liability not
at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its

acquisition or issue.

Loans and receivables and non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

identification and of impairment

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not at fair value
through profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of an asset and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows
on the asset that can be estimated reliably.
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  notES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
I For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Company about any significant financial difficult of the issuer, or significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between
its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

An impairment loss recognised reduces directly the carrying amount of the impaired asset. All impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Animpairment loss |s reversed if the reversal can be reiated objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Off-setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest income

Interest receivable and similar income comgprise of interest income from cash at bank and interest raceived from Her
Majesties Revenue & Customs.

interest income is recognised on an accrual basis.
Cash at bank

Cash at bank includes cash at bank and short-term deposits with credit institutions. Cash at bank is measured at nominal

values.

Tangible assets

Tangible assets are stated cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The Company
assesses at each reporting date whether tangible fixed assets are impaired. Depreciation is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income based on the estimate of the period over which the asset will provide useful economic benefit
to the Company. Al assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. The usefuf economic fife to be used for each
asset category is as below:

Software and IT equipment 3 years
Operationa! Data Store 2 years
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  \0TES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
‘ : For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Opeeating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term,

Emplavee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses, social contributions, paid annual leave and sick leave are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by the employees of the Company.

The Company operates 2 defined contribution scheme for its employees. The cost of providing pension contributions
for all staff is charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the period to which it refates.

Forelgn currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated to functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
transfated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruiing at the year-end. Non-monetary assets and
fiabilities that are translated to functional currency at foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences relating to the transactions and costs are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income.

Share based payments’

The Company’s ultimate parent grants rights to its equity instruments to the Company's employees, which are
accounted for as equity-settled in the consolidated accounts of the ultimate parent. As the Company has no cbligation
to settle the transaction, the Company accounts for these share-based payment transactions as equity-settled,

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted and the price at which they may be exercised by the employee and
is recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. This cost is recognised as an expense with
a corresponding credit to equity. None of Enstar Group Limited's equity-settled transactions have any market-based
perfgrmance conditions,

The amounts recharged by the ultimate parent undertaking are recognised as a recharge liability with a corresponding
adjustment {debit}) in equity for the capital contribution recognised in respect of the share-based payment.

Dividend income

Dividend incame from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment is established.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year at rates enacted or substantively enacted by the batance sheet
date, taking into account deferred tax,
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  no1es TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
- : For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. Summary of significant accounting polkcies (continued)

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences at the reporting date that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date where transactions or events that result in an ohligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less
tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date, Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that the
director considers that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other
future taxable profits. Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates and laws that that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date that are expected 1o apply to the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred
tax assets and Yiabilities are not discounted.

Joint ventures
Ioint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. The investraent is shown on the balance sheet as a non-

current asset. Changes in value of the Company's interest in the joint venture are recognised through the statement of
comprehensive income.

4. Turnover

Turnover represents amounts charged to fellow group companies and can be analysed as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

USD 000 UsD 000

Coverholder commission 563 1,130
Expenses recharged 59,882 12,214
Mark-up on recharges 2,891 591
63,336 13,935

The increase in Turnover is due to higher costs processed by the Company which were processed by other group
companies in 2018,

5. Administrative expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
UsSD 000 UsSo 000
Staff costs (see note 18) 39,102 6,551
Depreciation (see note 9) 817 1,562
Rent and rates 1,976 672
Information systems 4,411 193
Professional fees and outsourcing 3,489 573
Travel and entertainment 1,074 990
Management expense 9,393 2,883
Other administrative expenses 2,192 712
62,454 14,136

The increase in Administrative Expenses is due to higher costs processed by the Company which were processed by
other group companies in 2018.
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STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES UMITED

STARSTONE  \oTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
o For the year ended 31 December 2019
6. Operating profit
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2018
UsSD 000 Us0 000
Operating profit Is stated after charging:

Rent and rates 1,576 672
Auditor's remuneration - audit of the financial statements 47 41
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 816 1,562

These expenses have been recharged to StarStone group companies.

7.

Operating lesse rentals

The minimum lease payments before recharges to other group companies to which the Company is committed under
non-cancellable operating leases for the year are:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2013

usD 000 UsD 000

Land and buildings:
Within one year 1,339 865
Between two and five years 5,676 5,124
After five years 4,377 5,499
11,392 11,488
Tanation
{a) The tax (credit)/charge is based on the profit for the year and represents:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

UsD 0G0 USD 000

Current tax charge

Overseas corporation tax on profit for the year (528) 307
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 37 154
Total current tax (489) 461
Deferred taxation: current year 551 161
Deferred taxation: prior year adjustment (42) {88)
509 73

Tax on results 20 534
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  n0TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
‘ For the year ended 31 December 2019

8, Taxation [continued)

{b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

The tax charged for the period is different from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% {2018: 19%]). The
differences are explained below:

Year ended Yesr ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
USD 000 usD 000
{Loss) / Profit on ordinary activities before taxation (418) {491)
(Loss) / Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of
corporation tax in the United Kingdom of 19% (2018: 19%) {79) {93)
Foctors affecting the charge for the period:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 157 18
Transfer pricing adjustments (30} -
Prior year adjustment corporation tax 37 154
Prior year deferred tax {42) 88)
Losses not recognised for deferred tax - 498
Effect of change in tax rates 37 45
Total tax 20 534
{c) Provision for deferred tax
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
UsD 000 USC 000
Capital allowances for period in excess of depreciation 1,256 2,086
Share Based Payments 137 -
Losses 193 .
Deferred tax asset 1,586 2,096
Deferred tax asset at start of period 2,096 2,189
Deferred (credit) / tax in statemeant of comprehensive income for
period {510] {73}
Deferred tax asset at end of period 1,586 2,096

The Government has enacted legislation setting the corporation tax rate at 19% for the years starting 1 April 2017, 2018
and 2019 and at 17% far the year starting 1 April 2020. While the further rate reductions may reduce the Cornpany’s
tax charge in future periods, it has not been possible to guantify the effect at this stage.

The recognised deferred tax asset in respect of capital allowances for period in excess of depreciation is valued at the
tax rate at which these are expected to unwind amount to USD 1.586 million {2018: USD 2.096 million}.
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTON NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
’ For the year ended 31 December 2019
9. Tangible sssets
Computer
Equipment &
Software
UsD 000
Cost
At beginning of year 28,028
Additions 10,309
At end of year 38,337
Depreciation
At beginning of year [27,801)
Charge for the year {817)
At end of year {28,618}
Net Book Valve
Asg at 31 December 2018 ' 227
As at 31 December 2019 9,719
10.  Investments in group undertakings
Investments in group undertakings 31 December 31 December
2019 2018
USD 000 UsD 000
Inyestments brought forward 4,471 5,228
Additions in the year . 108
impairments in the year {910) (186}
Dividends received {162} (679)
Disposals in the year {340} -
3,059 4,471

The Company holds 99.99% of the ordinary shares of Torus Business Solutions Private Limited {*TB5PL"), registered
office 5-369 Greater Kailash — Il New Delhi, South Delhi, Delhi. TBSPL is following an orderly winding up, having ceased
to provide outsource services early in 2015. After taking into account provisions in winding up TBSPL, it was deemed
necessary to book an impairment of USD 77,000 in October 2019.

The Company holds 99.90%% of the ordinary shares of Vander Haeghen & Co 5A {"VdH"} and 99.98% of the ordinary
shares of Arena Assurances SA (“Arena”). The registered office for both entities is Avenue des Nerviens, 85 Bte 2, 1040
Brussels, Belgium. The principal activity of VdH and Arena is to provide underwriting services to SISE and other third
party insurance companies. The shares were acquired on 13 November 2015,

On 31st July 2019, SISL entered into an agreement with Agent Zero Group Pty Ltd (*AZG”) to sell their 1 fully paid
ordinary share held in Starstone Underwriting Australia Pty Ltd {"SUAL") for AUD 1. The sale was completed on 31st July
2019, As part of the sale, the existing share capital was reduced from AUD 500,000 to AUD 1, by canceiling 499,999
ordinary shares held by SISL. In addition, a dividend of USD 162,000 was made from SUAL to SISL prior to the sale.

The StarStone Group sold their ownership of Malakite (USD 959,000 at the end of 31 December 2018) which was 80%
‘owned by the Company and the Aviation portfolio of SISE to elseco Ltd (elseco) on 15th May 2019. In exchange for the

sale of
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  \otes T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
o For the year ended 31 December 2015

10. Investments in group undertakings (continued)

Malakite and the Aviation portfolio, the StarStone Group received USD 1m of deferred consideration which is due 36
months after the completion date and stock purchase warrants within elseco. The deferred consideration of USD
1,000,000 is recognised in other debtors.

Prior to the disposal, a loss cantingency for the termination of contract with the company’s software support provider
of USD 175,527 was recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. An impairment of USD 832,873 was
recognised prior to the disposal and a gain on disposal of USD 407,671 was recognised in the Staternent of
Comprehensive Income.

11. Investments in jointly controlled entities

The Company sold its 28.5% shareholding of Objective which was held under the Joint Venture Agreement with
Objective on 15t May 2019. Prior to the disposal, a loss contingency for the termination of contract with the company’s
software support provider of USD 195,293 was recognised in the Staterment of Comprehensive Incorme. A loss on
disposal of USD 217,676 was also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investments in jointly controlled entities 31 December 31 December

2019 2018

USD 000 UsSD 000

investments brought forward 218 218

Disposal in the year (218)
- 218
12. Debtors

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Use 000 uUsb 000

Amgounts owed by refated companies 11,307 5,134
Corporation tax a9 -
Deferred tax asset (note 8) 1,586 2,096
Dther 1,208 104
14,192 7,334

13. Cash at bank and in hand

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

UsD 000 LJSD 000

Cash at bank — operating 12,067 8,939
Cash at bank - restricted 6,051 9 885
18,118 18,824

Restricted cash is held in segregated accounts on behalf of Lioyd’s Syndicate 1301 and Lloyd’s Syndicate 2008 together
known as “the Syndicates”™.
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  novES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
o For the year ended 31 December 2019

14,  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

usD 000 use 000

Amounts due to related companies 12,751 346
Corporation tax - n
Other taxes and social security 616 143
Other creditors 205 43
Trade creditors 6,334 10,293
19,906 11,101

Trade creditors are made up of amounts owed to the Syndicates and consist primarily of premiums received. Cash is
held in segregated accounts which is periodically transferred to the Syndicates,

15. Provislons for labilities and charges

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
USD 000s USD 000s
Group restructuring provision - 245
- 245

16. Accruals
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
USD 000s USD 0005
Bonus Accruals 4,898 875
Other accruals 4,122 611
9,020 1,486

The increase in Accruals is due to higher recharges processed by the Company which were processed by other group
companies in 2018.

17. Called up share capital
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
USD 000s USD 0005
Allotted, issued and paid
40,000 Ordinary shares of USD 1.00 each 40 40

The issued share capital is wholly owned by the Company's immediate parent, StarStone Insurance 8ermuda Limited.
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  \oTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
oo For the year ended 31 December 2019

18.  Staff costs and numbers

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

USD 0005 USD 000s

Wages and salarles 32,072 5,576
Social security costs 3,291 591
Other pension costs 2,429 324
Share based payment expense 1,360 10
39,102 6,551

Yeor ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

No. No.

Executive [+ 1
Underwriting 17 20
Support and administration 20 22
37 43

One of the Directors of the Company that served during the year received pension benefits in the year totalling USD
12,000 {2018: USD 5,000). Staff numbers relates only staffs employed in the Continental Europe, whereas the staff costs
include UK staffs which are employed by another group company.

19. Share based payments

The Company participated in three types of share-based payment arrangements administered through its ultimate
parent company, Enstar Group Limited: (i) Employee Share Purchase Plan {"ESPP"}, (i) cash-settied stock appreciation
rights (“SARs”) and [iii) restricted share units (*RSUs") and performance shares ("PSUs") issued as part of StarStone
incentive plan awards.

Despite the adoption of exemption under FRS 102 Section 26 in relation to share based payments, details of the
individual schemes are summarised below.

For additional information about the scheme including valuation assumptions, please refer to Enstar Group accounts
which are publicly available.

{a) ESPP

The Company participated in the Enstar Group Limited Employee Share Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) in 2019. Under the rules
of the ESPP employees are entitfed to purchase shares in the ultimate parent company, via payroll deductions, at a 15%
discount to their quoted value, A share-based payment of USD 30,227 (2018: USD 10,065) has been charged recognised
for the year to reflect the discounted value of shares purchased in the year.
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

STARSTONE  noOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
o For the year ended 31 December 2019

19. Share based payments (continued)

{b} SARs and StarStone Incentive Plan

SARs and StarStone incentive plan awards are classified as cash-settled liability awards. The full cost attributable 10
StarStone employees is recharged to the Company and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

* S$ARs —The company has recognised a share-based payment charge of USD 149,434
*« RSUs - The company has recognised a share-based payment charge of USD 421,076
®  P5Us - The company has recognised a share-based payment charge of USD 759,186

20. Directors’ remuneration

Aggregate emoluments for the Company Directors that served during the year are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

USD 000s UsD 000s

Directors empluments 160 116

Contributions to pension plans 13 9
Emoluments for the highest paid Director of the Company are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 Devember 31 December

2019 2018

LISD 000s USD 000s

Directors emoluments 135 55

Contributions to pension plans 12 S

21, Events after the Reporting Date

Enstar Group, announced on 10 June 2020 that it will place Syndicate 1301, SISE and S1BL into immediate and orderly
run-off. Appropriate operations will remain in place to serve the needs of policyhotders of Syndicate 1301, SISE and SIBL
and ensure that the companies continue ta meet all regulatory requirements Whilst the expected completion date of
the run-off is uncertain, the management team is working closely with the regulators to ensure the Graup’s operations
are run-off in an orderly manner.

In response to the outbreak of the Coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19), the Company has successfully implemented its
Business Continuity Plan with all staff working from home with minimal disruption to its day-to-day operations. The
COVID-19 is a pandemic event that is not clearly timebound nor limited to direct consequences that are easily
quantifiable due to the unprecedented nature. The impact on the Company’s financial position to date has been limited.
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* STARSTONE INSURANCE SERVICES UMITED

STARSTONE  notES 70 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
’ For the year ended 31 December 2019

22. Uhktimate Parent Undertaking
The Director regards StarStone Insurance Bermuda Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda, as the immediate
parent company. Enstar Group Limited is the ultimate parent company and the ultimate controlling party. A copy of the

consolidated financial statements of Enstar Group Limited, as prepared under US GAAP and as registered with the SEC,
can be obtained from The Secretary, Enstar Group Limited, Windsor Place, 22 Queen Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
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KPMG Audit Limited Telephone +1 441 295 5063
Crown House Fax +1 441 295 8280
4 Par-la-Ville Road Internet www.kpmg.bm

Hamilton
HM 08
Bermuda

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Birectors of StarStone Insurance Bermuda Limited

We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of StarStone Insurance Bermuda Limited and its
subsidiaries {the “Company"), which comprise the consoclidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and
the related consolidated statements of earnings, total comprehensive loss, changes in shareholder's equity, and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consclidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refemred to above present fairly in all materiat respects, the financial

position of StarStone Insurance Bermuda Limited as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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Other matter

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that certain disclosures related to short-duration contracts in Note
7 to the basic financial statements be presented to supplement the basic consolidated financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic consolidated financial statements, is required by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board who consider it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic consolidated financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic consoclidated financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic consolidated financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

KPMG Audit Limiited

Chartered Professional Accountants
Hamilton, Bermuda
April 24, 2020
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STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at December 31,2019 and 2018

ASSETS

Short-term investments, trading, at fair value

Short-term investments, available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost: 2019 -

$5.485; 2018 - $Nily
Fixed maturities, trading. at fair value

Fixed maturities, available-for-sale, at fair value (amertized cost: 2019 - $429,796;

2018 - $Nil)

Equities. at fair value

Other investments, at fair value
Total investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Premiums receivable

Prepaid reinsurance premiums
Reinsurance recoverables

Due from affiliates

Deferred acquisition costs
Goodwill and intangible assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Losses and loss adjustment expenses
Unearned premiums

Insurance and reinsurance balances payable
Deposit liability

Deferred retroactive reinsurance gain

Due to affiliates

Accrued expenses and other payables
TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Common shares - 1,000,000 shares, par value of $1.00

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

2019 2018

(expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars
except share and per share amounts)

$ — % 5.738
5,486 —

637,047 1.057.004

428,837 —

126,343 21.535

131,985 280,970
1,329,698 1.365.247
157,273 170,258

36,395 60,118

405,775 482,092

179,224 244.716
1,413,243 1,103,690
273,741 184,311

78,599 66.613

44,659 75,648

167,618 68,596

$ 4,086,225 $ 3,821,289
1,968,963 1,714,020
519,210 619.164

783,912 629,902

27,500 40.439

110,503 69.914

26,872 5315

26,292 41,033

$ 3,463,252 § 3,119,787
1,000 1.000

1,114,631 1.114,631

(994) —

(491,664) (414.129)

$ 622,973 S 701,502
$ 4,086,225 § 3,821,289

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

INCOME
Net premiums earned
Net investment income

Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses)
Other income (loss)

EXPENSES

Net incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses
Acquisition costs

General and administrative expenses

Interest expense

Net foreign exchange losses

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES
Income tax benefit
NET LOSS

2019

2018

{expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

$ 708.188 § 561.012
42360 33.672

48.306 (15.576)
116 (541)

798,970 578,567

566,297 527,130

138.970 75.952

161,337 153,527

16,137 2,500

695 1,400

883.436 760.509
(84.466) (181.942)

6,931 6.327
$ (77,535) § (175,615)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31,2019 and 2018

2019 2018
(expressed in thousands of U.S, dollars)
NET LOSS $ (77,535) % (175,613)
Other comprehensive loss. net of income taxes:
Unrealized holding losses on fixed income investments arising during the year (994) —
Total other comprehensive loss $ (994) § —
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 8 (78,529) § (175.,615)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

SHARE CAPITAL - COMMON SHARES
Balance, beginning and end of year

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance, beginning of year
Contribution of capital

Balance, end of year

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Balance, beginning of year

Change in unrealized losses on investments

Balance. end of year

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT
Balance, beginning of year
Net loss

Balance, end of year

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

2019

2018

(expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

1,000 § 1.000

1,114,631 1,014,631

— 100,000

1,114,631 § 1,114,631

(994) —

(994) § —

$ (414,129) $ (238.514)
(77,535) {175,615)

$ (491,664) § (414,129)
622973 S 701,502

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
{expressed in thousands of U.S.
dollars)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (77.535) (175,615)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:
Realized and unrealized {gains) losses on investments (48,306) 23.081
Depreciation and amortization 33,144 3,880
Sales and maturities of trading securities 825,189 523.352
Purchase of trading securities (480,464) (559.510}
Net sales and maturities (purchases) of short term investments 397 (746)
Changes in:
Reinsurance balances recoverable (309,553) (492.296)
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 65,492 (2,879
Deferred acquisition costs (11,986} (21.352)
Premiums receivable 76,317 (110.404)
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 254,943 376,936
Insurance and reinsurance balances payable 194,599 306,557
Unearned premiums (99.954) 111.516
Due from / to affiliates (67.873) (23,454)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (27.683) 12951
Other assets (99,429) {9.290)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities 227,298 (37.273)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities 17.923 —
Purchase of available-for-sale securities (448,310) _—
Purchase of other investments (52,266) (147,782)
Sales of other investments 219,437 127.032
Net cash flows used in investing activities (263,216) (20,750)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital contribution — 100,000
Net cash flows provided by financing activities — 100.000
Eftect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash (750) 1.400
NET {DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (36,708) 43,377
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF
YEAR 230.376 186.999
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR $ 193.668 230.376
Reconciliation te Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Cash and cash equivalents 157.273 170.258
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 36,395 60,118
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 193,668 230.376

See accompanying notes to the conselidated financial statements.



STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular information expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except share and per share data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

StarStone Insurance Bermuda Limited (the “Company™) was incorporated on November 21, 2007 under the laws of Bermuda.
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of StarStone Specialty Holdings Limited ("SSHL") which is, in turn. wholly owned
by North Bay Holdings Limited ("North Bay").

Enstar Group Limited ("Enstar") has a 59.0% equity interest, Trident V funds ("Trident V"} managed by Stone Point Capital
LLC ("Stone Point"} and also a shareholder of Enstar has a 39.3% cquity interest and Dowling Capital Partners ("Dowling") has
a 1.7% equity interest in North Bay.

The Company is registered as a Class 4 insurer under the Insurance Act 1978, amendments thereto and related regulations {the
“Insurance Act™}. It underwrites commercial. professional. specialty insurance and reinsurance products to a global client base
through the following wholly owned insurance subsidiaries:

+  StarStone Specialty Insurance Company (“StarStone Specialty™), a US excess and surplus lines insurer,
+  StarStone National Insurance Company (“StarStone National™), a US markets insurer,
»  StarStone Insurance SE (“SISE™) a Liechtenstein based European Specialty Insurer,

»  StarStone Corporate Capital 1 Limited (“SCC1”), a corporate capital provider of Lloyd’s Syndicate 1301 prior to January
1,2017.

Effective January 1, 2017, SCCI1 allocated its capacity in Syndicate 1301 to Shelbourne Group Limited No. 1 Ltd. (“SGL
1™). an affiliated corporate member. on the basis of a capacity lease agreement (the “SGL | Lease Agreement’”). SGL 1 has
100% of the participation in Syndicate 1301 on the years of account from 2017 through 2019 which it reinsures on a quota
share and stop loss basis (the "SGL 1 Reinsurance Agreement") to the Company. The combined effect of the SGL 1 Lease
Agreement and the SGL 1 Reinsurance Agreement is that the net result of SGL 1's participation in Syndicate 1301
capacity is allocated to the Company.,

»  StarStone Underwriting Limited (“SUL™), a company which manages Syndicate 1301.

The Company and its insurance subsidiaries have a financial strength rating of A- (Excellent) from A.M. Best. For business
written through Lloyd’s Syndicate 1301, Lloyd’s is rated A (Excellent) by A.M. Best, AA- by Fitch Ratings and A+ by
Standard and Poor’s, with these ralings applying to all Lloyd’s syndicates.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U. S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles ("U.S. GAAP"). The consolidated tinancial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

The Company records its share of Syndicate 1301’5 assets, liabilitics. revenues and expenses under U.S. GAAP.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Our actual results
could differ materially from our estimates. Accounting policies that we believe are most dependent on assumptions and
cstimates are considered to be our critical accounting policies and are related to the determination of:

= liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses ("LAE"),

* reinsurance balances recoverable on paid and unpaid losses;



STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

»  valuation allowances on reinsurance balances recoverable
»  gross and net premiums written and net premiums earned;

= impairment charges, including other-than-temporary impairments on investment securities classified as available-for-
sale and impairments on goodwill and intangible assets; and

+ fair value measurements of investments.
Significant Accounting Policies
() Premiums
Premitims wrilten

Premiums are recorded as written on inception date of a policy. Premiums written are earned proportionally over the coverage
period. Written and earned premiums and the related costs include estimates for premiums which have not been finally
determined. These relate mainly to contractual provisions for the payment of adjustment or additional premiums, premiums
payable under proportional treaties and delegated underwriting authorities. Adjustment and additional premiums are premiums
charged which relate to experience during the policy term. Any subsequent differences arising on such estimates are recorded as
premiums written in the period in which they are determined.

Outward reinsurance premiums are recognized in the same accounting period as the related inwards premiums and are expensed
over the period under which the coverage is provided. For contracts written on a "losses occurring during basis”, the outward
reinsurance premiums are eamned on a pro-rata basis over the term of the contract. For contracts written on a "risk attaching
basis". the outward reinsurance premiums are earned based on the terms of the underlying contracts. Premiums payablc for
retroactive reinsurance coverage and meeting the conditions of reinsurance accounting, are reported as reinsurance recoverablcs
to the extent that those amounts do not exceed the underlying liabilities associated with the retroactive reinsurance contract. To
the extent that recorded liabilities exceed premiums payable. a deferred gain is recognized.

Certain contracts are retrospectively rated and provide for a final adjustment to the premium based on the final settlement of all
losses. Premiums on such contracts are adjusted based upon contractual terms, and management judgment is involved with
respect to the estimate of the amount of losses that we expect to incur. Additional premiums are recognized at the time loss
thresholds specified in the contract are exceeded and are earned over the coverage period, or arc carned immediately if the
period of risk coverage has passed.

Premiums receivable

Premiums receivable represent amounts currently due and amounts not vet due on insurance and reinsurance policies.
Premiums for insurance policies are generally due at inception. Premiums for reinsurance policies generally become due over
the peried of coverage based on the policy terms. We meonitor the credit risk associated with premiums receivable. taking into
consideration the impact of our contractual right to offset loss obligations or unearned premiums against premiums receivable.
Amounts deemed uncollectible are charged to net earnings in the period they are determined. Changes in the estimates of
premiums written will result in an adjustment to premiums receivable in the period they are determined.

Unearned premivms and prepaid reinsurance premiums

Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written that relate to the unexpired terms of policies in force. Premiums
ceded are similarly earned pro-rated over the period the coverage is provided with the unearned portion being deferred as
prepaid reinsurance premiums.

(b) Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs, consisting principally of commissions and brokerage expenses and certain premium taxes and fees incurred
at the time a contract or policy is issued and that vary with and are directly related to the successful efforts of acquiring new
insurance contracts or renewing existing insurance contracts. With exception of profit commissions, these are deferred and
amortized over the period in which the related premiums are earned. Profit commissions are estimated based on the related
performance criteria evaluated at the balance sheet date, with subsequent changes to those estimates recognizcd when they
occur. Deferred acquisition costs are limited to their estimated realizable value by line of business based on the related unearned
premiums, anticipated claims and claim expenses and anticipated investment income.
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A premium deficiency occurs if the sum of anticipated losses and loss adjustment expenses, deferred acquisition costs and
anticipated investment income exceed unearned premiums. A premium deficiency is recorded by charging any deferred
acquisition costs to expense to the extent required in order to eliminate the deficiency. If the premium deficiency exceeds
deferred acquisition costs then a liability is accrued for the excess deficiency.

{c} Losses and LAE

Losses represent the amount paid or expected to be paid to claimants in respect of events that have occurred on or before the
balance sheet date. The costs of investigating, resolving and processing these claims are known as LAE. LAE reserves include
allocated loss adjustment expenses ("ALAE") and unallocated loss adjustment expenses ("ULAE"). ALAE are linked to the
settlement of an individual ¢laim or loss, whereas ULLAE are based on our estimates of future costs to administer the claims.

The reserves for unpaid reported losses and loss expenses are established by management based on reports from brokers, ceding
companies and insureds and represent the estimated ultimate cost of events or conditions that have been reported to or
specifically identified by us. The reserve for losses incurred but not reported ("IBNR") is determined using a variety of
actuarial methods. Inherent in the estimate of ultimate losses and loss expenses are expected trends in claim severity and
frequency and other factors which may vary significantly as claims are settled. Accordingly, ultimate losses and loss expenses
may differ from the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements. These estimates are reviewed regularly and, as
experience develops and new information becomes known, the reserves are adjusted as necessary. Such adjustments, if any,
will be recorded in earnings in the period in which they become known. Prior period development arises from changes to loss
estimates recognized in the current year that relate to loss reserves established in previous calendar years.

Included within the total net incurred losses and LAE on our consolidated statement of earnings are the following items:
*  Net losses paid: paid losses and LAE, net of related reinsurance recoveries.

+  Net change in case and LAE reserves: the change in case reserves and associated LAE, net of related reinsurance
recoveries.

+  Net change in IBNR reserves: the change in IBNR reserves. net of related reinsurance recoveries.
= Increase (reduction) in provisions for unallocated LAE: the net change in our provision for unallocated LAE.

+  Amortization of deferred retroactive reinsurance gains: the amortization of the deferred retroactive reinsurance gains
associated with retroactive reinsurance contracts, where the estimated ultimate losses ceded at the inception of the
contracts is greater than the premium consideration paid.

{d) Reinsurance Recoverables

Amounts billed to, and due from, reinsurers resulting from paid claim movements in the underlying business are calculated in
accordance with the terms of the individual reinsurance contracts. Similarly, reinsurance balances recoverable related to our
case reserves are calculated by applying the terms of any applicable reinsurance coverage to movements in the underlying case
reserves. Our estimate of reinsurance balances recoverable related to IBNR reserves is recognized on a basis consistent with
the underiying IBNR reserves.

Our reinsurance balances recoverable are presented net of a provision for uncollectible amounts, reflecting the amount deemed
not collectible due to credit quality, collection problems due to the location of the reinsurer, contractual disputes with reinsurers
over individual contentious claims, contract language or coverage issues.

(e) Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-term investments and fixed maturity investments

Short-term investments comprise investments with a maturity greater than three months up to one year from the date of
purchase. Fixed maturity investments comprise investments with a maturity of greater than one year from the date of purchase.

Short-term and fixed maturity investments classified as trading are carried at fair value, with realized and unrealized holding
gains and losses included in the consolidated statement of earnings.

Short-term and fixed maturity investments classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value. with unrealized gains and
losses excluded from net earnings and reported as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
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("AOCI"). Realized gains and losses on sales of investments classified as available-for-sale are recognized in the consolidated
statement of earnings.

The costs of short-term and fixed maturity investments are adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts,
recognized using the effective vield method and included in net investment income. For mortgage-backed and asset-backed
investments, and any other holdings for which there is a prepayment risk, prepavment assumptions are evaluated and reviewed
on a reguiar basis.

Investment purchases and sales are recorded on a trade-datc basis. Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are
based upon specific identification of the cost of investments.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments

Fixed maturity investments classified as available-for-sale are reviewed quarterly to determine if they have sustained an
impairment of value that is, based on our judgment, considered to be other than temporary. The process includes reviewing
each fixed maturity investment whose fair value is below amortized cost and: (1) determining if we have the intent to sell the
fixed maturity investment; (2} determining if it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the fixed maturity
investment before its anticipated recovery; and (3) assessing whether a credit loss exists, that is, whether we expect that the
present value of the cash flows expected to be collected from the fixed maturity investment is less than the amortized cost basis
of the investment.

In assessing whether it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell a fixed maturity investment before its anticipated
recovery, we consider various factors including our future cash flow requirements, legal and regulatory requirements. the level
of our cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and fixed maturity investments available-for-sale in an unrealized gain
position, and other relevant factors.

In evaluating credit losscs, we consider a variety of factors in the assessment of a fixed maturity investment including: (1) the
time period during which there has been a significant decline below cost; (2) the extent of the decline below cost and par; (3)
the potential for the investment to recover in value; (4) an analysis of the financial condition of the issuer; (5) the rating of the
issuer; and (6) failure of the issuer of the investment to make scheduled interest or principal payments.

If we conclude that an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired ("OTTI"), then the difference between the fair value and
the amortized cost of the investment is presented as an OTTI charge in the consolidated statements of earnings, with an offset
for any non-credit related loss component of the OTTI charge to be recognized in other comprehensive income. Accordingly.
only the credit loss component of the OTT! amount would have an impact on our earnings.

Equities

Investments in equities include publicly traded equities and exchange-traded funds as well as in privately held equities. Equity
investments are carried at fair value with realized and unrealized holding gains and losses included in net eamings and reported
as realized and unrealized gains and losses.

Other investments

Other investments include private equity funds which comprise investments in senior secured bank loans and collateralized
commercial and residential mortgage backed securities, fixed income funds and a balanced fund. These other investments are
stated at fair value, which ordinarily will be the most recently reported net asset value as advised by the fund manager or
administrator. Many of the fund investments publish net asset values on a daily or weekly basis and provide liquidity on a
daily, weekly or monthly basis. Private equities typically report quarterly. The change in fair value is included in net realized
and unrealized gains and losses on investments and recognized in net earnings.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents includes money market funds, fixed interest deposits and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less.

(f) Funds Held

Under funds held arrangements, the reinsured companies have retained funds that would otherwise have been remitted to the
Company. The funds held balance is carried at cost within other assets on the conselidated balance sheets and is credited with
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premiums and investment income, with losses payable and acquisition costs being deducted. The investment returns on the
funds held balance are recognized in net investment income and net unrealized gains in the consolidated statement of earnings,
to the extent such investment income accrues to the Company. The funds held balance represents the aggregate of funds held at
cost and the value of an embedded derivative. The embedded derivative relates to our contractual right to receive the return on
the underlying investment portfolio economics.

(g) Foreign Exchange

Assets and liabilities of entities whose functional currency is not the U.S. dellar are translated at period end exchange rates.
Income and expenses of such foreign entities are translated at average exchange rates during the year. The effect of the currency
translation adjustments for these foreign entities is included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Other foreign currency assets and liabilities that are considered monetary items are translated at exchange rates in effect at the
balance sheet date. Foreign currency revenues and expenses are translated either at transaction date exchange rates or using an
appropriately weighted average exchange rate for the reporting period. These exchange gains and losses are recognized in net
carnings.

(k) Income Taxes

Certain of our subsidiaries operate in jurisdictions where they are subject to taxation. Current and deferred income taxes are
charged or credited to net income, or, in certain cases, to AQCI, based upon enacted tax laws and rates applicable in the
relevant jurisdiction in the period in which the tax becomes accruable or realizable. Deterred income taxes are provided for all
temporary differences between the carrying of assets and liabilities used in the financial statements and the tax bases used in the
various jurisdictional tax returns. When our assessment indicates that it is more likely than not that all or some portion of
deferred income tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded against the deferred tax assets to reduce the
assets to the amount more likely than not to be realized.

We recognize a tax benefit relating to uncertain tax positions only where the position is more likely than not (o be sustained
assuming examination by tax authorities. A liability or other adjustment is recognized for any tax benefit (along with any
interest and penalty, if applicable) claimed in a tax return in excess of the amount allowed to be recognized in the financial
statements under U.S. GAAP. Any changes in amounts recognized are recorded in the period in which they are determined.

(i) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair valuc of the net assets acquired. We perform an initial
valuation of our goodwill assets and assess goodwill for impairment on an annual basis. I, as a result of the assessment, we
determine the value of our goodwill asset is impaired, goodwill is written down in the period in which the determination is
made.

Intangible assets represent the fair values of Lloyd’s syndicate capacity, customer relationships and U.S. insurance licenses.
Definite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives. We recognize the amortization of all intangible
assets in our consolidated statement of eamings. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not subject to amortization. The carrying
values of intangible assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment at least annually or sooner whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the assets may be impaired. Impairment is recognized if the carrying values of the intangible assets
are not recoverable from their undiscounted cash flows and is measured as the difference between the carrying value and the
fair value.

(i) Retreactive Reinsurance

Retroactive reinsurance policies provide indemnification of losses and LAE with respect to past loss events. We use the
balance sheet accounting approach for assumed and ceded loss portfolio transters. whereby at the inception of the contract there
are no premiums or losses recorded in earnings. The initial gain, if applicable, is deferred and amortized into earnings over the
settlement period using the recovery method. Subsequent gains are deterred and amortized into ¢amnings over the settlement
period using the recovery method while subsequent losses are charged to earnings immediately.

(k} Seftware Development Costs

Direct internal and external costs to acquire or develop internal-use software are capitalized only afier the preliminary project
stage has been completed, management has authorized and committed to funding the project, it is probable that the project will
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be completed and the software will be used te perform the functions intended. Capitalized costs related to internal-use software
are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. These capitalized costs are also assessed for impairment
when impairment indicators ¢xist.

New Accounting Standards Adopted in 2019
Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2018-03, Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurements

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, which amended the fair value measurement guidance in Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") 820 - Fair Value Measurement, by removing and modifying certain existing disclosure requirements,
while also adding some new disclosure requirements. We adopted the new standard as of December 31, 2019 however these
new or modified disclosures did not have a material impact on the fair value measurement disclosures included in our
consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2018-02, Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Acctimulated Other Comprehensive Income

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, which gives entities the option to reclassify to retained earnings tax effects
related to items in AOCI that are deemed stranded in AQCI as a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Tax Act") enacted in
the United States at the end of 2017. The amendments in this guidance eliminate the stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax
Act and will improve the usefulness of information reported to financial statement users. We adopted the new standard on
January 1, 2019, and that adeption did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

ASUs 2016-02, 20i8-10, 2018-11 and 2019-01, Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, which is codified in ASC 842 - Leases, amending the guidance on the
classification, measurement and disclosure of leases for both lessors and lessees. The ASU requires lessees 1o recognize a right-
of-use asset and an offsetting lease liability on the balance sheet and to disclose qualitative and quantitative information about
leasing arrangements. Subsequently, in July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-10, which clarifies how to apply certain aspects
of ASC 842. The amendments in the ASU address a number of issues in the new leases guidance, including (1) the rate implicit
in the lease, (2) impairment of the net investment in the lease, (3) lessee reassessment of lease classification, (4} lessor
reassessment of lease term and purchase options, (5) variable payments that depend on an index or rate, and (6) certain
transition adjustments,

In July 2018, the FASB also issued ASU 2018-11, which adds a transition option for all entities and a practical expedient only
for lessors, to ASU 2016-02. The transition option, which we ¢lected on adoption of the guidance, allows entities not to apply
the new leases standard in the comparative periods they present in their financial statements in the vear of adoption. Under the
transition option, entities can instead opt to continue to apply the legacy guidance in ASC 840 - Leases, including its disclosure
requirements, in the comparative periods presented in the year they adopt the new leases standard. This means that entities that
elect this option will only provide annual disclosures for the comparative periods because ASC 840 does not require interim
disclosures. Entities that elect this transition option are still required to adopt the new leases standard using the moditied
retrospective transilion method, but they will recognize a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings in the period of adoption rather than in the earliest period presented. The practical expedient provides lessors with an
option to not separate the non-lease components from the associated lease components when certain criteria are met and
requires them to account for the combined component in accordance with the revenue recognition standard in ASC 606 if the
associated non-lease components are the predominant components.

In addition, in March 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-01 to clarify that in the year of initial adoption of ASC 842, entities are
not subject to the transition disclosure requirements in ASC 250-10-50-3 related to the effect of an accounting change on
certain interim period financial information. Prior to this clarification. the transition guidance in ASC 842 only excluded the
annual disclosures required in ASC 250-10-30-1(b)(2).

We adopted ASU 2016-02 and the related amendments on January 1, 2019 using the medified retrospective transition method
as required by the standard and recognized a right-of-use assct and an associated lease liability of $2 million on our
consolidated balance sheet, relating primarily to office space and facilities that we have leased to conduct our business
operations. Refer to Note 13 "Commitments and Contingencies" for further details.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
ASU 2020-01 - Clarifving the Interactions between ASC 321, ASC 323 and ASC 815

In January 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-01 to clarify the interaction of the accounting for equity securities under ASC 321
and investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting in ASC 323 and the accounting for certain forward
contracts and purchased options accounted for under ASC 815. With respect to the interactions between ASC 321 and ASC
323, the amendments clarify that an entity should consider observable transactions that require it to either apply or discontinue
the equity method of accounting when applying the measurement alternative in ASC 321, immediately before applying or upen
discontinuing the equity method of accounting. With respect to forward contracts or purchased options 1o purchase securities,
the amendments clarify that when applying the guidance in ASC 815-10-15-141(a), an entity should not consider whether upon
the settlement of the forward centract or exercise of the purchased option, individually or with existing investments, the
underlying securities would be accounted for under the equity method in ASC 323 or the fair value option in accordance with
ASC 825. The ASU is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020, although early
adoption is permitted, including adoption in any interim period. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

ASU 2019-12 - Simplifving the Accounting for Income Taxes

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12 which removes certain exceptions for (1) recognizing deferred taxes for
investments, (2} performing intraperiod tax allocation, and (3) calculating income taxes in interim periods. The ASU also adds
guidance to reduce complexily in certain areas, including recognizing deferred taxes for tax goodwill and allocating income
taxes to a legal entity that is not subject to income taxes. The ASU is effective for interim and annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2020, although early adoption is permitted, including adoption in any interim period. We are
currently assessing the impact of adopting this guidance however we do not expect that the adoption will have a material impact
on our consoiidated financial statements and disclosures.

ASUs 2016-13 and 2018-19, Financial Instrinments - Credit Losses - Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, which is codified in ASC 326, amending the guidance on the impairment of
financial instruments and significantly changing how entities measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other
financial instruments including reinsurance balances recoverable on paid and unpaid losses that are not measured at fair value
through net income. The ASU will replace the existing “incurred loss™ approach. with an “expected loss™ model for instruments
measured at amortized cost and require entities to record allowances for available-for-sale ("AFS") debt securities rather than
reduce the carrying amount under the existing OTTI model. The ASLI also simplifies the accounting model for purchased
credit-impaired debt securities and loans.

In November 2018, the FASB then issued ASU 2018-19 covering targeted improvements to ASU 2016-13, which clarifies that
receivables arising from operating leases are not within the scope of ASC 326-20 and that instead, the impairment of such
receivables should be accounted for in accordance with ASC 842 - Leases.

In April 2019, the FASB also issued ASU 2019-04, which amends (1) ASU 2016-13 as codified in ASC 326, (2) ASU 2017-12
on hedging activities as codified in ASC 815, and (3) ASU 2016-01 on recognizing and measuring financial instruments as
codified in ASC 825-10. Specifically with respect to ASC 326, the amendments in ASU 2019-04 clarify the scope of the credit
losses standard and address issues related to accrued interest receivable balances, recoveries, variable interest rates and
prepayments.

In May 2019, the FASB then issued ASU 2019-05, which amends ASU 2016-13 to provide entities with an option to
irrevocably clect the fair value option for certain financial assets previously measured on an amortized cost basis. Entities that
avail themselves of this transition relief will have the option to irrevocably elect the fair value option in ASC 825-10 on an
instrument-by-instrument basis for eligible instruments. upon the adoption of ASC 326. The fair value option election. however,
does not apply te held-to-maturity debt securities. An entity that elects the fair value option should subsequently apply the
guidance in ASC 820-10 and ASC 825-10 to the eligible instruments for which it has elected the fair value option.

In November 2019, the FASB also issued ASU 2019-10 deferring the effective dates for ASU 2016-13; ASU 2017-12 and ASU
2016-02 for non-public business entities. With respect to ASU 2016-13, this deferral was also extended to entities that meet the
smaller reporting company eligibility criteria.
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Finally, in November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-11 which clarified the following specific issues related to the
amendments in ASU 2016-13: (1) the treatment for expected recoveries for purchased financial assets with credit deterioration
or PCD assets, (2) application of the transition relief provided for troubled debt restructuring ("TDRs"), (3) disclosures related
to accrued interest receivables, and (4) the application of the practical expedient related to financial assets secured by collateral
maintenance provisions.

We adopted ASU 2016-13 and all the related amendments on January 1, 2020 using the modified retrospective approach and
recorded a cumulative effect adjustment of less than $1 million to increase opening retained earnings with respect to our
financial instruments carried at amortized cost, which primarily relate to our reinsurance balances recoverable and our ATFS debt
securities whose fair values were less than their amortized cost basis.

In addition to the estimated quantitative impact of adopting ASU 2016-13 and the related amendments, as illustrated above, the
guidance will also require us to amend and in certain cases. significantly enhance the qualitative disclosures included in our
consolidated financial stalements arcund the following specific items: (1) the credit risk inherent within our portfolios of
financial assets and how we monitor credit quality, (2) how we determine the estimation of expected credit losses, (3} changes
in the estimate of expected credit losses that have occurred during each reporting period, and (4) providing a roll-forward
analysis of our allowance for credit losses.

3. INVESTMENTS

We hold: (i) trading portfolies of fixed maturity, short-term investments and equities, carried at fair value; (ii) available-for-sale
portfolios of fixed maturity and shott-term investments, carried at fair value; and (iit) other investments carried at fair value.

Fixed Maturity Investments
Asset Types

The fair values of the underlying asset types of our short-term investments and fixed maturity investments, classified as trading
and available-for-sale, were as follows as at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019
Short-term Fixed
Short-term investments, Fixed maturities,
invgstments, available-for- maturities, available-for-
trading sale trading sale Total
U.S. government and agency $ — 5 548 $ 03,221 $§ 46,530 $§  115.237
UK. government — — 18.879 398 19.277
Other government — — 688 — 688
Corporate — — 180.066 213,066 393,132
Municipal — — 15.103 12,092 27.195
Residential mortgage-backed — — 111,279 34,499 145,778
Commercial mortgage-backed — - 109,218 53,978 163.196
Asset backed — — 138.593 68,274 206.867
Total fixed maturity and short-term investments $ — § 5486 $ 637,047 § 428837 $ 1,071,370
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2018
Short-term Fixed
Short-term investments, Fixed maturities,
investments, available-for- maturities, available-for-
trading sale trading sale Total
U.S. government and agency 5 3,746 % — $ 90,781 $ - $ 94,527
U.K. government — — 8.461 — 8.461
Other government — — 1.876 — 1.876
Corporate — —_ 489,837 — 489,837
Municipal — — 26,338 — 26,338
Residential mortgage-backed — — 123.714 — 123.714
Commerciza! mortgage-backed — — 143,256 — 143,256
Asset backed 1,992 — 172,741 — 174.733
Total fixed maturily and short-term investments § 5,738 8 — $ 1,057,004 § — § 1.062.742

Included within residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities as at December 31, 2019 were securities issued by U.S.
governmental agencies with a fair value of $63 million (as at December 31, 2018: $53 million).

Contractual Maturities

The contractyal maturities of our short-term investments and fixed maturity investments, classified as trading and available-for-
sale, are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or

prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

As of December 31, 2019 Amortized Cost Fair Value % of Total Fair Value
One year or less $ 40,104 § 39,966 37%
More than one year through two years 70,245 71,144 6.6 %
More than two years through five years 237,506 239,962 225 %
More than five years through ten years 196,757 200,156 18.7 %
More than ten vears 4,129 4,301 0.4 %
Residential mortgage-backed 143,046 145.778 13.6 %
Commercial mortgage-backed 161,814 163,196 15.2 %
Asset backed 208,710 206,867 19.3 %

$ 1,062,311 § 1,071,370 100.0 %
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Credit Ratings

The following table sets forth the credit ratings of our short-term investments and fixed maturity investments, classified as
trading and available-for-sale, as of December 31, 2019:

Non-
Amortized AAA AA A BBB Investment
Cost Fair Value % of Total Rated Rated Rated Rated Grade Not Rated

U.5. govemment and
agency $ 114,599 § 115237 108% % 115237 § — 3 — % — 3 — 3 —
UK Government 18.348 19277 18% — 19,277 — — — —
Other government 665 688 0.1 % — 533 155 — — —
Corporate 388,39) 393132 367 % Q174 45118 254873 83,967 — _—
Municipal 26,738 27,195 235 % 6,292 20,903 — — —_ —
Residential mortgape-
backed 143,046 145778 136 % 106,450 38,737 101 490 — —
Commercial merigage-
backed 161,814 163,196 152 % 67,573 20,805 38,255 35,540 668 355
Asset backed 208,710 206,847 193 % 82,686 11,763 37,103 61,443 13872 —

$ 1,062,311 $ 1,071,370 1000% § 387412 & 157,136 § 330487 $ 181440 3 14,540 § 355

Unrealized Gains and Losses on Available-for-sale Fixed Maturity Investments

The amortized cost and fair values of our fixed maturity investments classified as available-for-sale were as follows as of
December 31, 2019:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Total
U.8. government and agency $ 52,303 § 12 $ (299) § 52,016
UK. government 398 — — 398
Other government — — — —_
Corporate 213,390 339 {663) 213.066
Municipal 12,193 8 (109) 12,092
Residential mortgage-backed 34,526 31 (58) 34.499
Commercial mortgage-backed 54,172 12 (206) 53,978
Asset backed 68,299 58 (83) 68.274
Total fixed maturity and short-term investments $ 435,281 § 460 § (1418) § 434,323

We did not have any fixed maturity investments classified as available-for-sale as of December 31, 2018.
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Gross Unrealized Losses on Available-for-sale Fixed Marurity Investments

The following table summarizes our fixed maturity investments classified as available-for-sale in a gross unrealized loss
position, as of December 31, 2019:

12 Months or Greater Less Than 12 Months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. government and agency $ — 3 — § 37665 § (299) § 37,665 % (299)
UK. government — — — — — _
Other government — _— — - — —
Corporate — — 129,982 (663) 129,982 (663)
Municipal — — 11,284 (109) 11,284 (109)
Residential mortgage-backed — — 17,074 (58) 17,074 (58)
Commercial mortgage-backed — — 44,078 (206) 44,078 (2086)
Asset backed —_ — 34,077 (83) 34,077 (83)
Total fixed maturity thvestments $ — % — § 274160 $ (1.418) § 274160 S (1.418)

We did not have any fixed maturity investments classified as available-for-sale as of December 31, 2018.

As of December 31. 2019, the number of securities classified as available-for-sale in an unrealized loss position was 110. Of
these securitics, the number of securities that had been in an unrealized loss position for twelve months or longer was nil. From
October 1, 2019, where permissible, as trading fixed maturity securities mature, we are investing into available-for-sale.

Orher-Than-Temporary Impairment on Available-for-sale Fixed Maturity Investments

For the year ended December 31, 2019, we did not recognize any other-than-temporary impairment losses on our available-for-
sale securities. We determined that no credit losses existed as of December 31, 2019. A description of our other-than-temporary
impairment process is included in Note 2 "Significant Accounting Policies".

Equity Investment

The following table summarizes our equity investments carried at fair value as at December 31, 2019 and 2018;

2019 2018
Publicly traded equity investment in common stock $ 17455 § 21.535
Exchange-traded fund 105.888 —
Privately held equity investments in preferred stock 3,000 —
$ 126,343 & 21.535
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Other Investments

The following table summarizes our other investments cartied at fair value as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Euro fund $ 29936 § 73,485
Balanced fund — 61.445
Global fixed income fund — 55,979
High yield fixed income funds 50,358 46,428
Private equity funds 32,696 22,224
Hedge fund 18,992 19,534
Overseas deposits — 1,875

$ 131.985 § 280,970

The valuation of our other investments is described in Note 4 "Fair Value Measurements." The following is a description of the
nature of each of these investment categories:

The Euro fund (also referred as Patcham Funds). all of whose investors are Enstar subsidiaries and affiliates, comprises
a position in a diversified fixed income fund and also direct holdings in fixed income and equity securities. The fund
has regularly published prices and is redeemable weekly. Please refer to Note ¢ "Related Party Transactions” for more
details.

The balanced fund, all of whose investors are Enstar subsidiaries and affiliates, comprises a number of positions in
diversified fixed income, equity funds and also direct holdings in fixed income and equity securities. The fund has
regularly published prices and is redeemable weekly.

The global fixed income fund and high yield fixed income funds comprise a number of positions in diversified fixed
income funds that are managed by third party managers. Underlying investments vary from high grade corporate
bonds to non-investment grade senior secured loans and bonds, but are generally invested in liquid fixed income
markets. These funds have regularly published prices. The funds have liguidity terms that vary from weekly to
monthly.

Private equity funds primarily consist of investments in the financial services industry. All of our investments in
private equity funds are subject to restrictions on redemptions and sales that are determined by the governing
documents and limit the Company’s ability to liquidate those investments. These restrictions have been in place since
the inception of the investments.

The hedge fund invests in a wide range of instruments, including debt and equity securities, and utilizes various
sophisticated strategies to achieve its objectives. The hedge fund is eligible for quarterly redemption.

Overseas deposits represent monies kept in overseas funds managed by Lloyd’s. These funds are required in order to
protect policyholders in overseas markets and enable the Syndicate to operate in those markets. Access to these funds
is restricted and the Company cannot influence the investment strategy.

As at December 31, 2019 the Company had unfunded commitments attributable to its other investments of $24 million.
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Net Realized and Unrealized Gains (Losses)

Components of net realized and unrealized gains (losses) for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Net realized gains (losses) on sale:
Gross realized gains on fixed maturity securities. available-for-sale securities
Gross realized losses on fixed maturity securities, available-for-sale securities
Net realized gains (losses) on sale of fixed maturity securities, trading

Total net realized gains (losses) on sale

Net unrealized gains (losses):
Fixed maturity securities
Equity investments
Other investments

Total net unrealized gains {losses)

Net realized gains/(losses) and change in the fair value of embedded derivative:
Net realized gains/(losses) on fixed maturily securities
Change in fair value of embedded derivative

Net realized gains/(losses) and change in the fair value of embedded derivative

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses)

2019 2018

21 —
(207) —
11.534 (3.339)
11,348 (3.339)
20.531 (11.037)
(2,428} 3,075
13,497 (3.922)
31.600 (11.884)
932 (382)
4,426 29
5.358 (353)
48.306 (15.576)

The net realized losses and change in the fair value of the embedded derivative relates to the total return on the assets retained
by SGL 1 under the terms of the SGL 1 Reinsurance Agreement with the Company which is described in Note 1 "Description
of Business”. As of December 31, 2019, the Company has recorded an asset of $98 million (2018: $27 million) being the funds
retained by SGL 1 under the terms of the SGL 1 Reinsurance Agreement and which is included within 'Other assets’ in the

consolidated balance sheets.

Net Investment Income

Major categories of net investment income for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are summarized as follows:

Fixed maturity investments b
Shon-term investments and cash and cash equivalents

Equily investment

Interest income from affiliate

Funds Held

Gross investment income

Investment expenses

Net investment income $

2019 2018
31,857 $ 28,795

4,549 1.152

1.813 1.384

5,425 2,522

697 2,205

44,341 36.058
(1,981) (2,386)
42,360 $ 33.672

The interest income from affiliate of $5 million (2018: $3 million) relates to income
Holdings Ltd., please refer to Note 9 "Related Party Transactions" for further details.
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Restricted Assets

We are required to maintain jnvestments and cash and cash equivalents on deposit to support our insurance and reinsurance
operations. The investments and cash and cash equivalents on deposit are available to settle insurance and reinsurance
liabilities. We also utilize trust accounts to collateralize business with our insurance and reinsurance counterparties. These trust

accounts generally take the place of letter of credit requirements. The assets in trusts as collateral are primarity highly rated
fixed maturity securities.

The carrying value of our restricted assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, was as detailed below:

2019 2018
Collateral in trust for third party agreements b 466,398 % 409.147
Assets on deposit with regulatory authorities 135,967 135.085
Collateral for secured letter of credit facilities 36,082 37,385
Funds at Lloyd's 107,430 50744
$ 745,877 $ 641,361
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4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is defined as the price at which to sell an asset or transfer a liability (i.e. the "exit price") in an orderly transaction
between market participants. We use a fair value hierarchy that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and
the lowest priority to unobservable data. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels as follows:

= Level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets tor identical assets or liabilities that we have
the ability to access. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are not applied to Level 1 instruments.

+  Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in inactive markets. or for which significant inputs are observable {e.g. interest rates, yield curves,
prepayment speeds, default rates, loss severities. etc.) or can be corroborated by observable market data.

* Level 3 - Valuations based on unobservable inputs where there is little or no market activity. Unadjusted third party
pricing sources or management's assumptions and internal valuation models may be used to determine the fair values.

In addition, certain of our other investments are measured at fair value using net asset value ("NAV"}) per share (or its
equivalent) as a practical expedient and are not classificd within the three levels of the fair value hierarchy described above, We
have categorized our assets and liabilities that are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis among levels based on the
observability of inputs, or at fair value using NAV per share (or its equivalent) as follows:
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December 31, 2419
Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets for  Other Observable Unobservable Fair Value Based on
ldentical Assets Inputs Inputs NAY as Practical Total Fair
{Level 1} (Level 2} {Level 3) Expedient Value

Investments;
Fixed maturity investments:
U8, govemment and agency $ — % 115237 % — % — % 115,237
UK. govemment — 19,277 — — 19,277
Other government — 688 — — 688
Corporate —_ 393,132 — — 393,132
Municipal — 27,105 — —_ 27,195
Residential mortgage-backed — 145778 — —_ 145,778
Commercial morigage-backed — 163,166 — — 163,196
Asset-backed — 206,867 — — 206,867

§ - $ 1,071,370 % — 3§ — § 1,071,370
Equities:
Publicly traded equity investments $ — 17455 § — % — 3 17.455
Exchange-traded fund 105 888 — — — 105,888
Privately held equity investments — — 3,000 — 3,000

$ 105888 § 17455 § 3000 % — % 126,343
Other investments.
Euro fund $ — 8 29,939 % — % — & 29,939
Balanced fund _ — —_ — —
Global fixed income fund — — — — —
High yield fixed income funds — 50,358 — _ 50,358
Private equity funds — — —_ 32,696 32,696
Hedge tund — — — 18,992 18,992
Overseas deposits — — — — —

$ — % 80,297 § — 8 51,688 &% 131,985
Total Investments $ 1{}5.888 § 1,169,122 § 3000 % 51688 8§ 1,329.698
Cash and cash equivalents $ 42679 § 8.546 % — % — % 51,235
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December 31, 20138

Queted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets for  Other Observable U'nobservable Fair Value Based on
Identical Assets inputs Inputs NAY as Practical Total Fair
(Level 1} (Level 2) (Level 3) Expedient Yalue

Investments:
Fixed maturity investments.
U S. government and agency $ — % 94527 § — 3 -— 3 94,527
UK government — 8.461 — — 8461
Other government —_ 1,870 —_ — 1,876
Coerporate —— 489 837 — — 489 837
Municipal —— 26,338 — — 26338
Residential mortgage-backed — 123,714 — — 123,714
Commercial mortgage-backed — 139 525 3,731 —_ 143,256
Assel-backed — 167.275 7.458 — 174,733

3 — § 1.051,553 & 11,186 & — % 1,062,742
Other investments:
Euro fund — 73,485 —_ — 73,485
Balanced fund — 61,445 —_ — 61,445
Global fixed income funds — 55,979 — - 55,979
High yield fixed income funds — 46,428 — — 46428
Private equity funds w — — 22224 22224
Hedge fund — — — 19,534 19,534
Overseas deposits — 1,875 — — 1,875

3 — % 239212 § — 5 41,758 3% 280,970
Total Investments g — & 1,312,300 § 11,189 § 41,758 % 1,365,247
Cash and cash equivalents 3 57.865 % 4,989 § — 8 — § 62,854

Valuation Methodologies of Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value
Fixed Maturity Investments

The fair values for all securities in the fixed maturity investments are independently provided by the investment accounting
service providers, investment managers and investment custodians, each of which utilize internationally recognized independent
pricing services. We record the unadjusted price provided by the investment accounting service providers. investment managers
or investment custodians and validate this price through a process that includes, but is not limited to: (i} comparison of prices
against alternative pricing sources; (ii) quantitative analysis (e.g. comparing the quarterly return for each managed portfolio to
its target benchmark); (iii) evaluation of methodologies used by external parties to estimate fair value, including a review ot the
inputs used for pricing; and (iv) comparing the price to our knowledge of the current investment market. Our internal price
validation procedures and review of fair value methodology documentation provided by independent pricing services have not
historically resulted in adjustment in the prices obtained from the pricing service.

The independent pricing services used by the investment accounting service providers, investment managers and investment
custodians obtain actual transaction prices for securities that have quoted prices in active markets. Where we utilize single
unadjusted broker-dealer quotes. they are generally provided by market makers or broker-dealers who are recognized as market
participants in the markets in which they are providing the quotes. For determining the fair value of securities that are not
actively traded, in general, pricing services use "matrix pricing” in which the independent pricing service uses observable
market inputs including, but not limited to, reported trades, benchmark yields, broker-dealer quotes, interest rates, prepayment
speeds, default rates and such other inputs as are available from market sources to determine a reasonable fair value. In
addition, pricing services use valuation models, using observable data, such as an Option Adjusted Spread model, to develop
prepayment and interest rate scenarios. The Option Adjusted Spread model is commonly used to estimate fair value for
securities such as mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities.
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The following describes the techniques generally used to determine the fair value of our fixed maturity investments by asset
class:

+ 1LS. government and agency securities consist of securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and mortgage pass-through
agencies such as the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and other
agencies. Non-U.S. government securities consist of bonds issued by non-U.S, governments and agencies along with
supranational organizations. The significant inputs used to determine the fair value of these securities include the
spread above the risk-free yield curve, reported trades and broker-dealer quotes. These arc considered to be observable
market inputs and, therefore, the fair values of these securities are classified as Level 2.

*  Municipal securities consist primarily of bonds issued by U.S.-domiciled state and municipal entities. The fair values
of these securities are determined using the spread above the risk-free yield curve, reported trades, broker-dealer
quotes and benchmark yields. These are considered observable market inputs and, therefore, the fair values of these
securities are classified as Level 2.

= Corporate securities consist primarily of investment-grade debt of a wide variety of corporate issuers and industries.
The fair values of these securities are determined using the spread above the risk-free yield curve, reported trades,
broker-dealer quotes, benchmark yields, and industry and market indicators. These are considered observable market
inputs and, therefore. the fair values of these securities are classified as Level 2. Where pricing is unavailable from
pricing services, such as in periods of low trading activity or when transactions are not orderly, we obtain non-binding
quotes from broker-dealers. Where significant inputs are unable to be corroborated with market observable
information. we classify the securities as Level 3.

= Asset-backed securities consist primarily of investment-grade bonds backed by pools of loans with a variety of
underlying collateral. Residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities include both agency and non-agency
originated securities. Where pricing is unavailable from pricing services, we obtain non-binding quotes from broker-
dealers. This is generally the case when there is a low volume of trading activity and current transactions are not
orderly. The significant inputs used to determine the fair value of these securities include the spread above the risk-free
yield curve, reported trades, benchmark yields, prepayment speeds and default rates. The fair values of these securities
are classified as Level 2 if the significant inputs are market cbservable. Where significant inputs are unable to be
corroborated with market observable information, we classity the securities as Level 3.

Equities

Our investment in equity securities consists of a combination of publicly and privately traded investments. Our publicly traded
equity investment however trades in an inactive market and, as a result has been classified as Level 2. Our exchange-traded
fund trades on major exchanges. We use an internationally recognized pricing service to estimate the fair value of our
exchange-traded fund. We have categorized our exchange-traded as Level 1 investment because the fair value of this
investment is based on unadjusted quoted price in active markets for identical assets.

Qur privately held equity investment is a direct investment in a company that we believe offer attractive risk adjusted returns
and/or offer other strategic advantages. The market for this investment is illiquid and there is no active market. We use a
combination of cost, internal models, reported values from co-investors/managers and observable inputs, such as capital raises
and capital transactions between new and existing shareholders to calculate the fair value of the privately held equity
investment. The fair valuc estimate of our investment in privately held equity is based on unobservable market data and, as a
result, has been categorized as Level 3.

Other investments

We have ongoing due diligence processes with respect to the other investments carried at fair value in which we invest and their
managers. These processes are designed to assist us in assessing the quality of information provided by, or on behalf of. each
fund and in determining whether such information continues to be reliable or whether further review is warranted. Certain funds
do not provide full transparency of their underlying holdings; however, we obtain the audited financial statements for funds
annually, and regularly review and discuss the fund performance with the fund managers to corroborate the reasonableness of
the reported NAYV.

The use of NAV as an estimate of the fair value for investments in certain entities that calculate NAV is a permitted practical
expedient. Duc to the time lag in the NAV reported by certain fund managers we adjust the valuation for capital calls and
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distributions. Other investments measured at fair value using NAV as a practical expedient have not been classified in the fair
value hierarchy.

Other investments for which we do not use NAV as a practical expedient have been valued using prices from independent
pricing services, investment managers and broker-dealers.

The following describes the techniques generally used to determine the fair value of our other investments:

Our investments in the Euro fund, fixed income funds and balanced fund are valued based on a combination of prices
tfrom independent pricing services, external fund managers or third-party administrators. For the publicly available
prices we have classified the investments as Level 2.

For our investments in private equity funds, we measure fair value by obtaining the most recently available NAV from
the external fund manager or third-party administrator. The fair values of these investments are measured using the
NAYV as a practical expedient and therefore have not been categorized within the fair value hierarchy.

For our investments in the hedge fund, we measure fair value by obtaining the most recently available NAV as advised
by the external tund manager or third-party administrator. The fair values of this investment is measured using the
NAYV as a practical expedient and therefore has not been categorized within the fair value hierarchy.

Overseas deposits represent monies kept in overseas funds managed by Lloyd’s. These funds are required in order to
protect policyholders in overseas markets and enable the Syndicate to operate in those markets. Access to these funds
is restricted and the Company cannot influence the investment strategy. Our overseas deposits have been classified as
Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

Level 3 Measurements and Changes in Leveling

Transfers into or out of levels are recorded at their {air values as of the end of the reporting period, consistent with the date of
determination of fair value.

Investments

The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for all investments measured at fair value on
a recurring basis using Level 3 inputs during the yvears ended December 31,2019 and 2018:

2019
Commercial
mortgage- Privately held
backed Asset-backed equity Total
Beginning fair value $ 3731 § 7.458 % — § 11,189
Purchases — — 3,000 3.000
Sales (75) (2.670) — (2,745)
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses) (4) 270 — 266
Transfers into Level 3 from Leve] 2 — 19,350 —_ 19,350
Transfers out of Level 3 into Level 2 (3,652) {24,408) —_— (28,060)
Ending fair value $ — $ — 3 3.000 $ 3,000
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2018
Residential Commercial
mortgage-  mortgage- Asset- Other
Corporate backed backed backed Investments Total

Beginning fair value $ 375 § 1,980 § 4,429 § 4,855 % 351 § 11,990
Purchases — — 446 14,023 — 14,469
Sales (375} (85) {892) (15.409) {(270) (17,031)
Total realized and unrealized gains
(losses) — 27) 46 (1,487) (81) (1,549)
Transfers into Level 3 from Level 2 —_ 1,795 — 8.679 — 10,474
Transfers out of Level 3 into Level 2 — {3,663) (298) (3.203) — (7.164)
Ending fair value $ — § — § 3,731 § 7.458 $ — $ 11,189

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) related to our Level 3 investments summarized on the tables above are included in net
realized and unrealized gains(losses) in our consolidated statements of eamings.

The securities transferred from Level 2 to Level 3 were transferred due to insufficient market observable inpuis for the
valuation of the specific investments. The transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 were based upon us obtaining market observable
information regarding the valuations of the specific assets.

5. RETROACTIVE REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has entered into a series of reinsurance agreements which have been accounted for on a retroactive basis.
Fitzwiltiam #31:

With effect from January 1, 2014, the Company entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer reinsurance contract (“T.LPT™) with
Fitzwilliam Insurance Limited {("Fitzwilliam"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Enstar, through its Segregated Account 31
(“Fitzwilliam #317). for all discontinued lines of business in relation to the 2013 and prior underwriting years. Under the terms
of the LPT transaction, the Company ceded $360 million of retrospective losses and loss adjustment expenses and $46 million
of prepaid premiums net of acquisition costs in relation to future insurable losses. The $360 million of loss and allocated loss
adjustment expense reserves ceded to Fitzwilliam #31 was net of $169 million of ceded loss and allocated loss adjustment
expense reserves under existing third-party reinsurance contracts. Enstar and Trident have guaranteed the payment obligations
of Fitzwilliam #31 up to the full aggregate reinsurance limit.

The LPT agreement with Fitzwilliam #31 is on a funds withheld basis. The Company has established a segregated investment
portfolio in relation to the LPT which is shown as part of investments within the consolidated balance sheets and has a fair
value as at December 31, 2019 of $90 million (2018: $88 million). For the vear ended December 31, 2019, the Company
recorded a decrease of $19 million in the deferred retroactive gain and $12 million of the deferred retroactive gain was
amortized by the Company and recognized in earnings.

Fitzwilliam #41

With effect from October 1, 2018, the Company entered into a reinsurance contract with Fitzwilliam through its Segregated
Account 41 (“Fitzwilliam #417), for specific lines of business covering all losses occurring on or prior to October 1, 2018.
Through this reinsurance agreement, the Company ceded net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves of $208 million, in
excess of the attachment point of $97 million, to Fitzwilliam #41 subject to a contractual limit of $283 million on a net paid
basis.

For the vear ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded a increase of $25 million in the deferred retroactive gain and
$22 million of the deferred retroactive gain was amortized by the Company and recognized in earnings.

Fitzwilliam #42

With effect from April 1, 2019, the Company entered into a reinsurance contract with Fitzwilliam through its Segregated
Account 42 (“Fitzwilliam #42™), for specific lines of business covering all losses occurring prior to April 1, 2019 or, for one
specific line of business, prior to January 1, 2019. Through this reinsurance agreement, the Company ceded net loss and loss
adjustment expense reserves of $117 million to Fitzwilliam #42 subject to a contractual limit of $165 million on a net paid
basis.
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From inception of the contract on April 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019, the Company recorded a increase of $43 million in the
deferred retroactive gain and $12 million of the deferred retroactive gain was amortized by the Company and recognized in
earnings.

Cavello Bay

On December 15, 2016, the Company entered into a continuous 35% quota share reinsurance contract with KaylaRe Ltd
(“KaylaRe”) pursuant to which KaylaRe reinsures 35% of all business written by StarStone Specialty, StarStone National, SISE
and business written through Syndicate 1301 for risks attaching from January 1, 2016, net of third party reinsurance in relation
to the 2016 and subsequent underwriting years. With effect from January 1, 2018, StarStone Specialty and StarStone National
terminated their quota share reinsurance arrangement with KaylaRe on a run-off basis. With effect from January 1, 2019,
KaylaRe terminated its ¢uota share reinsurance arrangement with SISE and Syndicate 1301 on a run-off basis. Effective
September 30. 2019. KaylaRe merged with Cavello Bay Reinsurance Limited ("Cavello Bay"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Enstar, with Cavello Bay as the surviving company. All amounts previously presented with KaylaRe as the counterparty have
been updated to reflect Cavello Bay as the counterparty.

With effect from October 1, 2019, the Company simultaneously entered into two reinsurance contracts with Cavello Bay. The
first contract provides retrospective coverage for specific lines of business covering all losses occurring prior to October 1,
2019. Through this agreement, the Company ceded net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves of $149 million, in excess of
the attachment point of $67 million. The second contract provides prospective coverage for construction business covering all
losses occurring on or after October 1, 2019. Through this agreement, the Company ceded unearned premium reserves, net of
deferred acquisition costs, of $40 million. The aggregate limit for retrospective and the prospective contract is $248 millien on
a net paid basis.

From inception of the contract on October 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019, the Company recorded a increase of $14 million in
the deferred retroactive gain and none of the deferred retroactive gain was amortized by the Company and recognized in
earnings. There was no amortization of the retroactive gain through carnings for the year ended December 31, 2019 as there
have been no ceded paid recoveries since inception of the contract.

Deferred Retroactive Reinsurance Gain

As described within Note 2 "Significant Accounting Policies”. in the event that the cumulative loss and allocated loss
adjustment expenses ceded under the retroactive reinsurance agreements exceed the consideration paid, the resulting gain from
such excess is deferred. A portion of the deferred gain is cumulatively recognized in earmnings in the period such excess arises
as if the revised estimate was available at the inception date of the contract.

The table betow provides a consclidated reconciliation of the beginning and ending deferred gain arising on the retroactive
reinsurance agreements for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019
Fitzwilli Fitzwilli Fitzwilli
itrwilliam  Fitzwilliam  Fitzwilliam  ¢ouopo gy Total
Balance as at January 1 $ 20,280 3 49,634 % — 3 — % 69,914
Retroactive reinsurance gain (loss) (18,754) 25,366 42,948 13,924 63,484
Amortization of gain 11,610 (22,023) (12,482) — {22,893)
Balance as at December 31 $ 13.136 § 32977 % 30,466 $ 13,924 % 110,503
2018
i illi i il Fitzwilli
Fltzvj;'él:mm FItZ\;’:‘ 1lam i zm 2lam Cavello Bay Total
Balance as at January 1 $ 23,386 § — 3 — % 1,765 % 25.151
Retroactive reinsurance (loss) gain (597) 49,634 — — 46,037
Amortization of gain {2.509) — — (1,765) (4.274)
Balance as at December 31 3 20280 $ 49,634 § — 8 — 3 69.914
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Funds Withheld - Affiliated Reinsurers

The Company holds a funds withheld liability balance due to its affiliated reinsurers Fitzwilliam #31, Fitzwilliam #41,
Fitzwilliam #42 and Cavello Bay included within insurance and reinsurance balances payable on the consolidated balance
sheets. In relation to Fitzwilliam #31, the Company retains the underlying investments within a segregated investment portfolio
and credits the total return on the investments to the funds withheld balance owing to Fitzwilliam #31. In relation to
Fitzwilliam #41, Fitzwilliam #42 and Cavello Bay, the Company credits the funds withheld account with a rate of interest that
is pegged to a benchmark rate plus a specified margin with such investment income accruing to Fitzwilliam #41, Fitzwilliam
#42 and Cavello Bay as the reinsurer.
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6. REINSURANCE RECOVERABLE

The Company has used retrocessional agreements to reduce its exposure to the risk of insurance and reinsurance assumed. The
purchase of reinsurance does not legally discharge the Company from its primary gross liability and therefore the Company
remains liable to the extent that its reinsurers do not meet their obligations under these reinsurance agreements. The Company
continuously evaluates and monitors the concentration of its credit risk among its reinsurers and provisions are made for
amounts considered potentially uncollectible. Reinsurers that are not considered to meet the Company’s security requirements
are required to provide collateral or a guarantee from a parent or group company with appropriate security.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the underlying liabilities.

The effects of reinsurance on premiums written and earned for the years ended December 31. 2019 and 2618 are as follows:

Premioms Written:

Direct

Assumed

Total Gross Premium Written

Ceded Premium Written - Affiliates
Ceded Premium Written - Non-Affiliates

Net Premium Written

Premiums Earned:

Direct

Assumed

Total Gross Premiums Earned

Ceded Premiums Earned - Affiliates

Ceded Premiums Earned - Non-Affiliates

Net Premiums Earned

The following tablc provides the total reinsurance balances recoverable as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

Recoverable from reinsurers on unpaid:

Outstanding losses

IBNR

Total reinsurance balances recoverable

Paid losses recoverable
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2019 2018
$ 770,626 $ 691.675
146,927 429.460
917,553 1,121,135
(63,383) (128.371)
(181.920) (321.852)
$ 672,250 $ 670,912
$ 818,924 § 638,853
200,059 369,714
1.018.983 1,008.567
(94.,413) (150,275)
(216,382) (297.280)
$ 708,188 $ 561.012
2019 2018
$ 726,278 § 573,293
625,068 502.319
1.351,346 1.075.612
61,897 28,078
$ 1,413,243 § 1,103.690
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The following table summarizes our reinsurance balances recoverable by reinsurer and rating as appropriate, as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Affiliated Reinsurers

Cavello Bay $ 409,090 $ 154.121
Fitzwilliam #31 89,288 104.856
Fitzwilliam #41 200,348 258.268
Fitzwilliam #42 113,249 —
811,975 517.245

Non-Affiliated Reinsurers
Reinsurers rated A+ or above by A.M. Best 339,297 360.895
Reinsurers rated A by A.M. Best 188,933 149.782
Reinsurers rated A- or below by AM. Best 48,052 31,318
Reinsurers secured by collateral / guarantees 24,986 44.450
601,268 586.445
b 1,413,243 § 1,103,690
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7. LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

The following table summarizes the liab ility for gross losses and LAE as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
QOutstanding losses $ 938,886 § 853.069
IBNR 997.250 831.364
ULAE 32,787 29,587
Losses and loss adjustment cxpenses 1,968,963 1,714.020

The table below provides a consolidated reconciliation of the beginning and ending liability for losses and LAE for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Loss and loss adjustment expenses $ 1,714,020 § 1,337,084
Less: reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses (1,075,612) (583.809)
Deferred gain on retroactive reinsurance 69,914 25,151
Net balance as at January 1 708,322 778,426
Net incurred losses and LAE:
Current year 482.514 406.028
Prior periods 43,194 76,339
Movement in the deferred gain on retroactive reinsurance contracts 40,589 44,763
Total net incurred losses and LAE 566,297 527.130
Net losses paid:
Current year (76,038) (119,439)
Prior periods (206,133) (269.236)
Total net paid losses (282,171) (388.675)
Assumed business — 10,268
Ceded business (265.870) (208.634)
Eftect ot exchange rate movement 1,542 {10,193)
Net unpaid losses and LAE reserves as at December 31 617.617 638.408
Plus: reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses as at December 31 1,351,346 1,075,612
Gross losses and loss adjustment expenses as at December 31 1,968,963 1.714,020
Deferred gain on retroactive reinsurance as at December 31 110.503 69914
Total losses and LAE and deferred retroactive reinsurance gain as at December 31 § 2,079.466 $ 1,783,934

Net change in incurred losses and LAE reserves comprises of, (1) the movement during the year in specific case reserve
liabilities as a result of claims settlements or changes advised to us by our policvholders and attorneys, less changes in case
reserves recoverable advised by us to our reinsurers as a result of the settlement or movement of assumed claims, and (2) the
net change in IBNR which represents the gross change in our actuarial estimates of IBNR. less amounts recoverable.

For the vear ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded an overall net increase in ultimate losses and loss adjustment
expense liabilities of $366 million. Current year loss activity was $483 million in 2019, driven by large losses on lines of
business that have been exited (construction, airlines) or re-underwritten {marin¢). The Company recorded net adverse prior
period reserve development of $43 million primarily due to U.S. excess casualty. The ceded business of $266 million
represents the initial cessions with Fitzwilliam #42 and Cavello Bay which have been accounted for on a retroactive basis as
further discussed in Note 5 "Retroactive Reinsurance Arrangements”.
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For the vear ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded an overall net increase in ultimate fosses and loss adjustment
expense liabilities of $527 million. Current year loss activity was $406 million in 2018, driven in part by accumulation of large
losses during the year which impacted our international property. construction, marine cargo and marine hull and war lines of
business. The Company recorded net adverse prior period reserve development of $76 million primarily due to 11.S. healthcare,
excess casualty, maring, aviation and construction lines of business. The assumed business of $10 million relates to additional
business assumed after the reinsurance to close of the 2015 and prior year of account for our participation within Syndicate
1301. The ceded business of $209 million represents the initial cession with Fitzwilliam #41 which has been accounted for on a
retroactive basis.

Loss Development Information
Methodelogy for Establishing Loss Reserves

The liability for losses and LAE includes an amount determined from reported claims and an amount based on historical loss
experience and industry statistics for IBNR using a variety of actuarial methods. Our loss reserves cover multiple lines of
business, which include casualty, marine, property. aerospace and workers' compensation. Management, through our loss
reserving committee, considers the reasonableness of loss reserves recommended by our actuaries. including actual loss
development during the year.

Case reserves are recognized for known claims (including the cost of related litigation) when sufficient information has been
reported to us to indicate the involvement of a specific insurance policy. We use considerable judgment in estimating losses for
reported claims on an individual claim basis based upon our knowledge of the circumstances surrounding the claim. the severity
of the injury or damage. the jurisdiction of the occurrence, the potential for ultimate exposure, the type of loss, and our
experience with the line of business and policy provisions relating to the particular type of claim. The reserves for unpaid
reported losses and LAE are established by management based on reports from brokers, ceding companies and insureds and
represent the estimated ultimate cost of events or conditions that have been reported to, or specifically identified, by us. We also
consider facts currently known and the current state of the law and coverage litigation.

IBNR reserves are established by management based on actuarial estimates of ultimate losses and loss expenses. We use
generally accepted actuarial methodologies to estimate ultimate losses and LAE and those estimates are reviewed by
management. In addition, the routine settlement of claims, at either below or above the carried advised loss reserves, updates
historical loss development information to which actuarial methodologies are applied, often resulting in revised estimates of
uitimate liabilities. On an annual basis, we engage an independent actuarial firm to review the estimates of ultimate losses
developed by our actuaries, for reasonableness.

Within the annual loss reserve studies produced by our actuaries. our assumed exposures are separated into homogeneous
reserving categories for the purpose of estimating IBNR. Each reserving category contains either direct insurance or assumed
reinsurance reserves and groups relatively similar types of risks and exposures {for example, casualty, property, workers
compensation) and lines of business written (for example, marine, aviation, non-marine). Based on the exposure characteristics
and the nature of available data for each individual reserving category, a number of methodologies are applied. Recorded
reserves for each category are selected from the actuarial indications produced by the various methodologies after consideration
of exposure characteristics, data limitations and strengths and weaknesses of each method applied. This approach to estimating
IBNR has been consistently adopted in the annual loss reserve studies for each period presented.

The estimation of unpaid claim liabilities at any given point in time is subject to a high degree of uncertainty for a number of
reasons. A significant amount of time can lapse between the assumption of risk, the occurrence of a loss event, the reporting of
the event to an insurance or reinsurance company and the ultimate payment of the claim on the loss event. Our actuarial
methodologies include industry benchmarking which, under certain methodologies, compares the trend of our loss development
to that of the industry. To the extent that the trend of our loss development compared to the industry changes in any period, it is
likely to have an impact on the estimate of ultimate liabilities. Unpaid claim liabilities for property and casualty exposures in
general are impacted by changes in the legal environment, jury awards, medical cost trends and general inflation. Certain
estimates for unpaid claim liabilities involve considerable uncertainty due to significant coverage litigation, and it can be
unclear whether past claim experience will be representative of future claim experience. Ultimate valucs for such claims cannat
be estimated using reserving techniques that extrapolate losses to an ultimate basis using loss development factors, and the
uncertainties surrounding the estimation of unpaid claim liabilities are not likely to be resolved in the ncar future. In addition.
reserves are established to cover loss development related to both known and unasserted claims, Consequently, our subsequent
estimates of ultimate losses and LAE, and our liability for losses and LAE, may differ materially from the amounts recorded in
the consolidated financial statements.
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These estimates are reviewed regularty and, as experience develops and new information becomes known, the reserves are
adjusted as necessary. Such adjustmenits, if any, will be recorded in earnings in the period in which they become known. Prior
period development arises from changes to loss estimates recognized in the current year that relate to loss reserves established
in previous calendar years.

Disclosures of Incurred and Paid Loss Development, IBNR, Claims Counts and Payout Percentages

The loss development tables disclosed below, sets forth our historic incurred and paid loss development by accident year
through December 31, 2019, net of reinsurance, as well as the cumulative number of reported claims, IBNR balances, and other
supplementary information. All the lines of business related to the Company have been included within the loss development
disclosures below. namely. Casualty. Marine, Property, Aerospace and Workers’ Compensation with the exception of the
legacy discontinued liabilities which have been fully ceded to Fitzwilliam #31, as described in Note 5 "Retroactive Reinsurance
Arrangements"”, as the Company has no net liability with respect to these reserves.

Cumulative Number of Reported Claims

Reported claim counts, on a cumulative basis, are provided as supplemental information to each incurred loss development
table by accident year. The claim frequency information is determined at the claimant level for the exposures within the
Company's lines of business disclosed within the loss development tables below. Our claims system assigns a unique claim
identifier to each reported claim we receive, Each unique claim identifier is deemed to be a single claim, irrespective of
whether the claim remains open or has been closed with or without payment. For certain insurance facilities and business
produced or managed by managing general agents, coverholders and third party administrators where the underlying claims
data is reported to us in an aggregated format, the information necessary to provide cumulative claims frequency is not
available. In such cases, we typically record a “block™ claim in our system. This also applies to a small amount of assumed
reinsurance business that we write where, similarly. the underlying claims data is reported to us in an aggregated format. In
such instances, each assumed reinsurance contract is deemed a single claim.

Summarv of Liability for Losses and LAE by Line of Business

The following table provides a breakdown of the Company's liability for losses and LLAE reserves by line of business. as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

2019
Gross Net
OLR IBNR Total OLR IBNR Total
Casualty 5 193,105 § 482,096 % 675201 % 88630 $ 258,392 § 347,022
Marine 193,921 173.167 367,088 41.211 62.114 103,325
Property 365,234 144,253 509,487 20,078 21,118 41,196
Aerospace 57.285 122,314 179,599 (4.126) 0.347 2,221
Workers' Compensation 79,249 40,508 119,757 31.982 68.167 100,149
LPT with Fitzwilliam #31 50,092 34,952 85,044 — — —
Total $ 938886 § 997200 § 1936176 § 177.775 $ 416.138 $ 593,913
ULAE 32.787 23,704
Total $ 1,968,963 $ 617,617



Casualty
Marine
Property
Aerospace

Workers' Compensation
LPT with Fitzwilliam #31

Total
ULAE
Total

STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Incurved and Paid Loss Development by Line of Business

The foliowing tables set forth information about incurred and paid loss development information for all of the Company’s lines
of business as at December 31, 2019. The information on the incurred losses and loss expenses and cumulative paid losses and
loss expenses as of December 31, 2019 is presented net of reinsurance. The information related to incurred and paid loss
development for the years ended December 31, 2014 through 2018 is presented as supplementary information and is therefore
unaudited. The information in the incurred and paid loss development tables below is presented on a prospective basis from the
date of the acquisition of the Company by FEnstar, Trident V and Dowling through SSHL as described in Note 1 "Description of
Business" since providing pre-acquisition incurred and paid losses by accident year for years prior to 2014 was determined to
be impracticabie due to significant data limitations.

Casualty

Incurred Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Nef of Reinsurance

2018
Gross Net
OLR IBNR Total OLR IBNR Total
$ 164498 $ 334679 § 499177 $ 101,700 § 209423 § 311.123
185,084 182,453 367,537 93,789 40,460 134,249
306,065 123,157 429,222 52,970 20,757 73,727
67.203 40.416 107,619 7.755 6.551 14.306
49,373 110,082 159,455 27,333 57,692 85,025
80.846 40,577 121,423 — — —
$§ 853069 § 831364 § 1684433 § 283547 § 334.883 § 618.430
29.587 19,978
$ 1,714,020 $ 638,408

For the Years Ended December 31,

As of December 31, 2019

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Cumulative

Accident Year {unaudited) (unaudited} (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaundited) 2n9 IBNR* Number of Claims
2009 and Prior  § 82278 § 82329 $ 82400 $ 82324 § 82535 § 82552 % — 2,543
2010 16,623 17,769 17,856 18,538 18,556 18,531 89 729
2011 21,101 25,435 25,745 24,971 24,637 25,664 238 2,035
2012 56,891 48,251 43,936 40,095 39,200 38,468 186 3,128
2013 72,771 66,888 86,756 76,172 72,456 70,396 629 4,998
2014 91,369 92,793 92,812 90,335 85,774 79,383 4,500 5,734
2015 105,135 111,067 110,179 113,070 104,512 8,540 4,744
2016 101,599 98,814 103,249 92,479 9,356 4,467
2017 95,734 108,942 84,033 19,080 4,830
2018 126,438 112,186 52,081 3,902
2019 187,538 163,693 2,780
Total § 895742 § 258,392 39,890

* Total of IBNR plus expected development on reported losses.
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Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance
For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Accident Year _ (ungudited) __ (unaudited) _ (unaudited) _ (unaudited) __(unaudited) 2019
2009 and Prior § 82,257 $ 82319 § 82,395 § 82,318 § 82,534 § 82,542
2010 15,555 17.768 17.855 18,537 18,555 18,466
2011 15,745 21,088 23,731 24294 24,925 25,377
2012 18,412 29,503 32,694 33,943 35,162 36,260
2013 23,054 30,448 50,137 54,688 60,389 66,520
2014 5,769 21,911 37.607 50.767 64.582 67.186
2015 8,088 27,292 45,014 68,194 84,183
2016 3.638 32,723 59,992 70.327
2017 6,078 33.204 55,559
2018 15,658 35,004
2019 7.296
Total 548,720
Total outstanding liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE, net of reinsurance $ 347,022

The reconciliation of incurred and paid loss development to the liability for unpaid losses and LAE as presented in the tables
above for the year ended December 31, 2019 is set forth below:

2019

Liabilities for unpaid losses and allocated LAE, net of reinsurance 5 347.022
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses b 328.179
Gross liability for unpaid losses and LAE b 675.201
The following is unaudited supplementary information for average annual historical duration of claims:

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Losses by Age, Net of Reinsurance
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year9 Year 10
Casualty 65% 205% 185% 18.4 % 124 % 5.6 % 31% 14 % 0.7 % — %
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Incurred Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

For the Years Ended December 31,

As of December 31, 2019

2014 201% 2016 2017 2018 Cumulative

Accident Year (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) 2019 IBNR* Number of Claims
2009and Poor § 27070 § 27002 $ 27018 § 27050 § 27076 § 27132 § — 1,961
2010 22,347 19270 19,114 19,176 18,987 16,445 115 1,029
2011 29,527 27753 27330 27.371 27.661 32,853 419 1,961
2012 47,957 51,418 51.074 49813 50,430 60,022 34 2,422
2013 62,904 55,154 52,938 53,913 56,531 35,221 23 2,226
2014 50,079 53,452 48,450 54,958 49,758 42,618 120 4,003
2015 71,004 70,033 79,494 74,090 60,593 127 5,742
2016 64,063 60,633 58,686 46,978 232 4,904
2017 86,686 80,463 58921 473 8,524
2018 103,198 68,757 471 9881
2019 121,072 60,100 5219
Total § 570612 § 62.114 49.902

* Total of IBNR plus expected development on reported losses.

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Accident Year  (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) 2019
2009 and Prior  $ 26,939 § 26,990 § 27015 § 27,042 § 27,077 § 27,010
2010 16,300 18,324 18,403 18.372 18.437 16,133
2011 29,395 31,152 32,397 32,643 32,803 32,625
2012 49.727 53.711 55446 56,589 57,206 59.701
2013 12,529 21,213 25,135 27237 29,071 32,653
2014 10,878 24,813 32.332 36,773 42,420 40,903
2015 10,871 30.562 50,062 56,154 55,981
2016 10,721 32,487 43,685 45,837
2017 16,628 41,343 57,513
2018 31.451 66.855
2019 32,074
Total $ 467,287
Total outstanding liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE. net of reinsurance §$ 103,325

The reconciliation of incurred and paid loss development to the liability for unpaid losses and LAE as presented in the tables
above for the year ended December 31, 2019 is set forth below:

Liabilities for unpaid losses and allocated LAE, net of reinsurance

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losscs
Gross liability for unpaid losses and LAE
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The following is unaudited supplementary information for average annual historical duration of claims:

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Losses by Age, Net of Reinsurance
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year9 Year 10

Marine 19.7 % 28.0 % 18.0 % 6.9 % 4.8 % 29 % 2.0 % 1.2 % — % — %
Properry
Incurred Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance
For the Years Ended December 31, As of December 31, 2019
Cumulative
Accident 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Number of
Year (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited} (unaudited) (unaudited) 2019 IBNR* Claims
2009 and Prior § 113828 § 113118 § 113,206 § 113696 § 113238 § 112065 § — 2,901
2010 74.893 67.437 72,072 72,134 71.462 72.002 —_ 1,557
2011 91,161 89,708 89,752 89,441 83,018 89,179 — 1,621
28312 £5,824 61,707 60,683 61,637 56,339 57,572 — 1,501
2013 78.145 65,152 64 804 63,959 59.112 39638 — 1,959
2014 58,975 43,848 43,169 43,603 37,224 36,161 — 2,094
2415 78.993 76,550 70,359 66,366 63,880 — 5,720
2016 73,794 78.738 70309 68.130 —_ 6.791
2017 106,619 86,461 91,974 — 8,034
2018 85,267 65,895 759 6,633
2019 35714 20,359 3.277
Total $ 752210 § 21,118 42,108

* Total of IBNR plus expected development on reported losses.

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance
For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Accident Year (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) 2019
2008 and Prior  $ 112,693 § 112,957 § 112987 § 113,237 § 113,143 3 112,042
2009 69.070 71,958 72.069 72,131 72,148 71.999
2010 87411 88,608 89,113 89,366 89,345 89,132
2011 48,103 52,168 54,308 55,274 55.474 57,543
2012 30.880 46,285 51,086 53,172 59,277 59.624
2013 5,500 18,830 31,617 34,563 36,106 35,850
2014 10,433 28,652 55,372 63,880 64,154
2015 23,208 49,077 62.826 68,147
2016 24,709 63,339 85,080
2017 51.849 51,470
2018 15,973
Total $ 711,014
Total outstanding liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE. net of reinsurance $ 41,196

The reconciliation of incurred and paid loss development to the liability for unpaid losses and LAE as presented in the tables
above for the year ended December 31. 2019 is set forth below:

36



STARSTONE INSURANCE BERMUDA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2019
Liabilities for unpaid losses and allocated LAE, net of reinsurance 3 41,196
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 468,291
Gross liability for unpaid losses and LAE 3 509.487

The following is unaudited supplementary information for average annual historical duration of claims:

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Losses by Age, Net of Reinsurance
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year9 Year 10
Property 221% 245% 259% 8.2 % 25 % 2.6 % 03 % 09 % — % — %

Aerospace

Incurred Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

— For the Years Ended December 31, As of December 31, 2019

Accident 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Cumulative Number of

Year (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) {(unaudited) 2019 IBNR* Claims
2009 and Prior  § — 8 — % — 3 — $ — 3 — 3 — —
2010 18,441 18,073 18,382 18,896 18,532 18,346 2 594
20E1 58,786 57,257 57,681 58,114 57,528 57,485 3 2,197
2012 55675 55,370 36212 56,159 55365 55,150 | 2421
2013 72,098 70,180 70,511 74,900 72,554 73,457 4 2,568
2014 65208 53,541 53,553 52,341 46,817 44,363 4 2,861
2015 66335 69,499 72,519 66,353 65,666 337 2975
2016 30,673 34,320 30,083 31,497 185 2,880
2017 20,055 17,150 35,086 41 3,100
2018 26,661 23.390 501 2,891
2019 14,082 5,269 1,232
Total § 419,222 § 6,347 23.71%

* Total of IBNR plus expected development on reported losses.
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Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Accident Year {(unaudited) (unaudited) {unaudited) {unaudited) (unaudited) 2019
2009 and Prior % — § — 3 — 3 — 3 — $ —
2010 15.396 16,539 17,145 18,209 18,494 18,530
2011 53.821 35,179 55,858 56,435 57,028 57.420
2012 45,897 49,332 52,142 53,622 54,812 55,100
2013 50,842 59,850 63,439 68,775 72,770 73.429
2014 17.297 31,147 38,426 40,678 43.801 44210
2015 32,388 52,185 60,820 64,000 65,666
2016 10,181 25223 28,777 30,270
2017 6,582 19,524 34,692
2018 17,655 23,883
2019 13,801
Total $ 417,001
Total outstanding labilities for unpaid losses and LAE, net of reinsurance $ 2,221

The reconciliation of incurred and paid loss development 1o the liability for unpaid losses and LAE as presented in the tables

above for the year ended December 31, 2019 is set forth below:

2019
Liabilities for unpaid losses and allocated LAE, net of reinsurance $ 2221
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 177.378
Gross liability for unpaid losses and LAE $ 179,599
The following is unaudited supplementary information for average annual historical duration of claims:
Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Losses by Age, Net of Reinsurance
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year® Year 10

Actospace 359% 290 % 17.3 % 4.8 % 4.6 % 32% 1.8 % 24 % 1.1 %
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Incurred Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

For the Years Ended December 31,

As of December 31, 2019

2014 2015 2416 2017 2018 Cumulative

Accident Year (unaudited) (unaudited) {(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) 201% 1BNR* Number of Claims
2009 and Prior  § — % — % — 3 — % — % 5 — g
2010 — — — — — — — _
2011 — — — — — — — -
2012 — — — — — — — _
2013 m — — — — — — —
2014 15,607 17,199 18,290 15,662 15,203 14,873 1421 1,062
2015 54,977 55,505 50,103 47,338 45,812 4,905 2,522
2016 52,997 45,464 48,568 46 740 7,622 2,507
2017 28,025 25,491 19,246 3,881 2,110
2018 35941 31,511 11,361 2,820
2019 55,811 38977 2,860
Total § 213963 § 68,167 13,881

* Total of IBNR plus expected development on reported losses.

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Accident Year  (unaudited) (unaudited) (unandited) {unaudited) {unaudited) 2019
2009 and Prior $ — % — 5 — 8 — & — % —
2010 — — — — — —
2011 — — — — — —
2012 — —_ - — — —
2013 — — — — — —
2014 1,491 6,079 9,279 11,431 12,243 12,617
2015 6,361 20,194 30,439 35,311 37,385
2016 6,458 19,695 27,996 33,430
2017 3,560 8,781 12,284
2018 3,187 11,438
2019 6,690
Total $ 113,844
Total outstanding liabilities for unpaid tosses and LLAE, net of reinsurance $ 100,149

The reconcitiation of incurred and paid loss development to the liability for unpaid losses and LAE as presented in the tables
above for the year ended December 31, 2019 is set forth below:

Liabilities for unpalid losses and allocated LAE, net of reinsurance

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses

Gross liability for unpaid losses and LAE

2019

$ 100,149
19.608

$ 119.757
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The following is unaudited supplementary information for average annual historical duration of claims:

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Losses by Age, Net of Reinsurance
Year1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year7  Year$8 Year9 Year 10

Workers'
Compensation 13.1 % 28.5 % 20.0 % 12.2 % 5.0 % 25% — %% — % — % -— %

8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table represents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending goodwill and other intangible assets as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Customer &

Insurance Syndicate Broker
Goodwill Licenses Capacity Relationships Total
Balance as at January 1, 2018 $ 30,400 § 19.900 §$ 24,600 % 1,249 § 76.149
Amortization — — — (501} (501)
Balance as at December 31, 2018 $ 30400 $ 19.900 § 24600 % 748 % 75,648
Amortization — — — (589) (589)
Impairment {30,400 — — — (30,400)
Balance as at December 31,2019 § — § 19.900 § 24,600 § 159 § 44,659

Goodwill

In 2010, the Company acquired Glacier Insurance AG and the Direct and Facultative book of Glacier Reinsurance AG
(collectively “Glacier”) and recorded $30.4 million of goodwill. During the year ended December 31, 2019 and in accordance
with 11.S, GAAP, the recorded goodwill amount was assessed for impairment by management. An income-based approach was
used to develop a discounted cash flow model. including sensitivity analysis, to estimate the current fair value of the reporting
unit which could then be compared to its current carrving value on our consolidated balance sheet. Based on this model,
management concluded that the goodwill value was impaired. As a result. an impairment charge of $30 million was recorded.

Intangible assets with an indefinite life

In 2009, the Company acquired StarStone Specialty and recorded intangible assets of $12 million at the acquisition date. In
2010, the Company acquired StarStone National and recorded $8 million of intangible assets at the acquisition date. In both
cases, the acquired assets consisted of insurance licenses which have an indefinite life.

In 2012, the Company recorded $25 million of syndicate capacity as a result of the acquisition of SCC1. The intangible asset
acquired consists of syndicate capacity which represents the authorization to write insurance and reinsurance business at
Lloyd's in London.

Intangible assets with a definite life

In 2010, as part of the Glacier acquisition, an intangible asset of $5 million was recognized in respect of customer and broker
relationships. In 2012, management subsequently reassessed the nature of this intangible asset and determined that its useful
life was ten years. The remaining unamortized balance at December 31, 2019 will be amortized in 2020.

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into certain reinsurance transactions with affiliated companies and also earns fees or incurs costs
related to various adminisirative services that are either provided to. or obtained from entities related through common control.
Some of the Company s investment portfolios are also managed by affiliated entities as described further below.
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Fitzwilliam Insurance Limited

The Company entered into LPT agreements with Fitzwilliam #31, Fitzwilliam #41 and Fitzwilliam #42 in 2014, 2018 and 2019,
respectively. Each of these counterparties are segregated account entities whose preferred shares are held by North Bay, the
sole shareholder of SSHL and are managed by Fitzwilliam, a wholly owned subsidiary of Enstar. Our consolidated statements
of earnings for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 included the following amounts:

Amounts under Fitzwilliam #31 LPT: 2019 2018
Ceded premium earned $ 674§ 4.741
Nelt incurred losses and LAE (9.198) (4.075)
Acquisition costs (1,349) 1,975
Investment income on assets supporting the LPT — (3,198)

Our consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 include the following balances in relation to Fitzwilliam
#31:

Amounts under Fitzwilliam #31 LPT: 2019 2018
Reinsurance recoverables $ 89,288 § 104,856
Ceded unearned premium 1.165 1,633
Ceded deferred acquisition costs 833 1,086
Funds held 90,096 87,862

Our consolidated statements of earnings for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 included the following amounts in
relation to Fitzwilliam #41:

Amounts under Fitzwilliam #41 LPT: 2019 2018
Net incurred losses and LAE $ 22,366 % —
Investment income on assets supporting the LPT (6.823) —

Our consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 include the following balances in relation to Fitzwilliam
#41:

Amounts under Fitzwilliam #41 LPT: 2019 2018
Reinsurance recoverables $ 200348 § 258,268
Funds held 197,171 208,634

Our consolidated statements of earnings for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 included the following amounts in
relation to Fitzwilliam #42:

Amounts under Fitzwilliam #42 LPT: 2019 2018
Net incurred losses and LAE $ 42,948 % —
Investment income on assets supporting the LPT {2.616) —

Our consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2016 and 2018 include the following balances in relation to Fitzwilliam
#42:

Amounts under Fitzwilliam #42 LPT: 2019 2018
Reinsurance recoverables $ 113,249 § —
Funds held 98.915 —

See Note 5 "Retroactive Reinsurance Arrangements” for more details.
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Cavello Bay

As detailed further in Note 5 "Retroactive Reinsurance Arrangements", the Company has a continuous 35% quota share
reinsurance contract with KaylaRe. Effective September 30, 2019, KaylaRe merged with Cavello Bay with Cavello Bay as the
surviving company. The Company has investment assets to support the quota share agreement on a funds withheld basis.
Cavello Bay pays Enstar Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Enstar, 3% of the net written premiums assumed under this
continuous quota share contract as a servicing fee, 75% of which is then paid to the Company. Our consolidated statements of
carnings for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 inciuded the following amounts, inclusive of the amounts ceded via
the SGL 1 Reinsurance Agreement:

Amounts under Cavello Bay quota share: 2019 2018
Ceded premium earned $ (88,050) §% (208,504)
Net incurred losses and LAE 109.872 183.555
Acquisition cosis 34,249 78,985
Investment income supporting the quota share (4,905) (1,953}

Our consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 includes the following balances, inclusive of the amounts
ceded via the SGL 1 Reinsurance Agreement:

Amounts under Cavello Bay quota share: 2019 2018

Reinsurance recoverables $ 241,073 § 255,575
Ceded prepaid reinsurance premiums 17,676 87.053
Ceded deferred acquisition costs 8,838 29365
Funds held 227,129 227,337

The Company entered into a LPT agreement with Cavello Bay in 2019. Our consolidated statements of earnings for the vears
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 included the following amounts:

Amounts under Cavello Bay LPT: 2019 2018
Ceded premium earned b (5,688) $ —
Net incurred losses and LAE 18,759 —
Acquisition costs 1,457 —
Investment income on assets supporting the LPT (1,794) —

Qur consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 includes the following balances in relation to Cavello Bay:

Amounts under Cavello Bay LPT: 2019 2018
Reinsurance recoverables % 168,018 § —
Ceded uncamned premium 38,815 —
Ceded deferred acquisition costs 1,251 —_
Funds held 101,848 —

Effective August 5, 2016, the Company entered into a reinsurance agreement with The Coca Cola Company ("TCCC") and
Cavello Bay, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enstar, 10 assume 100% of certain TCCC liabilities for deductible/retention
exposures in respect of TCCC's policies placed with external reinsurers’ for the periods between 1986 through 1996, 1997
through 2001 and 2002 through 2010. The Company subsequently retroceded 100% of the risks that it assumed from TCCC to
Cavello Bay. Since both the reinsurance agreement with TCCC and the retrocession agreement with Cavello did not meet the
U.S. GAAP risk transfer criteria, they were subjected to deposit accounting by the Company. As of December 31, 2019, the
deposit asset and liability with Cavello Bay and TCCC respectively, was $28 million (2018: $40 million).
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SGL1

SGL 1 has reinsured its participation in Syndicate 1301 through the SGL 1 Reinsurance Agreement with the Company. Our
consolidated statements of earnings for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 included the following amounts:

2019 2018
Amounts under SGL 1 assuming Reinsurance Agreement:
Net premiums earned b 186,317 § 181,033
Net incurred losses and LAE 169.868 180.966
Net acquisition costs 49,151 33,089
Other income/(expense) 5.678 (38.623)
Qur consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 include the following balances:
2019 2018
Amounts under SGL 1 assuming Reinsurance Agreement:
Premiums receivable $ 139,962 % 206,963
Deferred acquisition costs 22,952 15,979
Net unearned premiums 85,297 87.350
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 296,655 241,018
Other assets 97,637 26,800

Kenmare Holdings Lid.

In 2019 and 2018, Kenmare Holdings Limited (“Kenmare™), an affiliated company which is wholly owned by Enstar, pledged
cash and investments to Lloyd's of London to collateralize the Company’s exposure to the business it assumes from SGL 1
under the SGL 1 Reinsurance and Leasing Agreements as described in Note 1 "Description of Business". The Company in turn
loaned funds to Kenmare equal to the cash and investments pledged to Lloyd's of London te collateralize the Company's
exposure to the business it assumes from SGL 1 as described above. As at December 31, 2019, the balance owed by Kenmare

to the Company under this funding agreement was $238 million (2018: $121 million).

Enstar Affiliates

The Company incurs costs related to administrative services provided by Enstar (EU) Limited and Enstar (US) Inc., which are
both affiliated companies. Our consolidated statements of carnings and consolidated balance sheets for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 and as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 respectively, included the following amounts in respect of

these administrative services:

2018

2019
Administrative services costs:
Enstar (E1J) Limited $ 10.215
Enstar {US) Inc. 16311
Outstanding balances - administrative services:
Enstar (EU) Limited $ 11,133
Enstar (US) Inc. 5.345

Stone Point

47.168
51,851

751
2.415

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had investments in funds, which are included within other investments that
are either affiliated with entities owned by the Trident V funds or with Stone Point. Our consolidated statements of earnings
and consolidated balance sheets for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 included the following amounts in respect of

these investments:
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2019 2018
Other investments, at fair value b 53,591 § 49,038
Net unrealized gains (losses) 4,553 {2,243)

The Company alse had a separate account managed by Eagle Point Credit Management, which is an affiliate of entities owned
by the Trident V funds. Qur consolidated statements of earnings and consolidated balance sheets for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 and as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, included the following amounts in respect of
these investments:

2019 2018
Other investments. at fair value $ 39,386 % 37,931
Management fecs 99 224

The Company also had an investment in a registered investment company affiliated with entities owned by Trident. Qur
consolidated statements of earnings and consolidated balance sheets for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018 respectively, included the following amounts in respect of these investments:

2019 2018
Other investments, at fair value % 17,455 § 21,535
Net unrealized (losses) gains (4,080) 4,459

In addition, the Company has invested in a fund, which is included within other investments, that is managed by Sound Point
Capital, an entity in which Mr. James D. Carey, who is a director of Enstar. has an indirect minority ownership interest and
serves as a director. Our consolidated statement of earnings and consolidated balance sheets for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018 and as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, included the foliowing amounts in respect of these
investments:

2019 2018
Other investments, at fair value $ 18,993 § 19,535
Net unrealized losses (542) (936)

Patcham Investment Funds Ple (“Patcham Funds”)

The Company also invests in Patcham Funds, as part of a group investment pool with other companies related through common
control. These funds are managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enstar. During 2019, these holdings were sold and the
proceeds were used for other operaticnal purposes. Our consolidated statements of earnings and consolidated balance sheets for
the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, included the following
amounts in respect of these investments:

2019 2018
Patcham fixed income fund $ — % 55,979
Patcham balanced fund — 61,445
Patcham eure fund 29,939 73,485
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) 14,097 (3,179

Clear Spring Property and Casualty Company

Effective January 1, 2017. Enstar sold Seabright Insurance Company (*“SeaBright Insurance™) and its licenses to Delaware Life
Insurance Company {"Delaware Life"), a subsidiary of Guggenheim Partners, LLC. Following the sale, SeaBright Insurance
was renamed Clear Spring Property and Casualty Company {*Clear Spring™). Clear Spring was subsequently capitalized with
$56 million of equity. with Enstar retaining a 20% indirect equity interest in Clear Spring.
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Effective January 1, 2017, StarStone National entered into a Quota Share Treaty with Clear Spring pursuant to which Clear
Spring reinsures 33.3% of core Workers Compensation business written by StarStone Naticnal. Our consolidated statements of
earnings for the vears ending December 31. 2019 and 2018 includes the following transactions between StarStone National and
Clear Spring:

Amounts under Clear Spring quota share: 2019 2018
Ceded premiums earned $ (14,994) § {29,520)
Net incurred losses and LAE 6,567 18,143
Acquisition costs 356 7,035

Our consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 includes the following balances related to transactions
between StarStone National and Clear Spring:

Amounts under Clear Spring quota share: 2019 2018

Reinsurance recoverables 5 22,812 % 23,718
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 51 13.821
Ceded reinsurance payable 3,616 i4,153
Ceded deferred acquisition costs 21 3,233

Effective December 31, 2018, the Quota Share Treaty between the Company and Clear Spring was discontinued.

10. INCOME TAXATION

The Company is incorporated under the laws of Bermuda and is therefore subject to Bermuda law with respect to taxation.
Under current law, the Company is not taxed on any Bermuda income or capital gains and has received an undertaking from the
Bermuda Minister of Finance that, in the event of any Bermuda income or capital gains taxes being imposed, it will be exempt
from those taxes until 2035.

The Company has foreign operating subsidiaries and branch operations principally located in the United States. United
Kingdom, and Continental Europe that are subject to federal, foreign state and local taxes in those jurisdictions.

The following table illustrates our current and deferred income tax benefit by foreign and domestic jurisdictions for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018:

Current: 2019 2018
Domestic (Bermuda) $ — 5 —
Foreign (880) (2,305)

{880) (2,305)

Deferred:

Domestic (Bermuda) $ — 5 —
Foreign (6,051} (4.022)
(6,051) (4,022)
Total income benefit $ (6,931) § (6,327)

The actual income tax rate differs from the amount computed by applying the effective rate of 0% under Bermuda law to
carnings before income taxes as shown in the following reconciliation for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018:
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2019 2018
Loss before income tax $ (84,466) $ (181,942)
Bermuda income taxes at statutory rate — -
Foreign income tax raie differential 2,649 (3.560)
Change in valuation allowance (12,544) (156)
U.S. base erosion and anti-abuse tax 1,859 773
Effect of change in foreign tax rate {221) (1.426)
Other 1,226 (1,958)
Total income tax (benefit) $ {6,931 § (6.327)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the tax effect of the differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases
of assets and liabilities. Significant components of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relating to our operations

were as follows:

Deferred tax assets: 2019 2018

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 29473 § 34.893
Insurance reserves 6,569 3.314
Unearned premiums 6,980 6.767
Lloyd's underwriting losses taxable in future periods — 3.809
Other deferred tax assets 2,316 5,025
Gross deferred tax assets b3 45338 § 53.808
Less valuation allowance (13,839) (32.623)
Deferred tax asscts $ 31,499 % 21,185
Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gains {181) —
Other deferred tax liabilities (13,927} —
Intangible assets — (9.961)
Net deferred tax asset 3 17,391 § 11,224

As of December 31, 2019, we had net operating loss carry forwards that could be available to offset future taxable income. as

follows:

Tax Jurisdiction Loss Carryforwards Tax effect Expiration
Operating Loss Carryforwards;

United States $ 70605 § 14,827 2029-2038
United Kingdom 71,688 12,187 Indefinite
Other 13,141 2,459 2024-Indefinite

Assessment of Valuation Allowance on Deferred Tax Assets

As of December 31, 2019, we had deferred tax asset valuation allowances of $14 million (2018: $33 million) related to foreign

subsidiaries.

The realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income in future periods in which the tax
benefits are deductible or creditable. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be revised in
the future if estimates of future taxable income change. Taxes are determined and assessed jurisdictionally by legal entity or by
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filing group. Certain jurisdictions require or allow combined or consolidated tax filings. We have estimated future taxable
income of our foreign subsidiaries and provided a valuation allowance in respect of those assets where we do not expect to
realize a benefit. We have considered all available evidence using a “more likely than not™ standard in determining the amount
of the valuation allowance. We censidered the following evidence: (i) net earnings or losses in recent years; (ii) the future
sustainability and likelihood of positive net earnings of our subsidiaries; (iii) the carryforward pericds of tax losses including
the effect of reversing temporary differences; and (iv) tax planning strategies, in making our determination. The assumptions
used in determining future taxable income require significant judgment and any changes in these assumptions could have an
impact on eamnings.

The Company classifies all interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as income tax expense. As of December 31.
2019 and 2018, the Company recognized no expenses or liabilities for tax related interest and penalties in its consolidated
statements of earnings and consolidated balance sheets, respectively. The Company had no unrecognized tax benefits relating to
uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Qur operating subsidiaries may be subject to audit by various tax authorities and may have different statutes of limitations
expiration dates. Tax authorities may propose adjustments to our income taxes. Listed below are the tax years that remain
subject to examination by major tax jurisdiction as of December 31, 2019:

Major Tax Jurisdiction Open Tax Years
United States 2016-2019
United Kingdom 2016-2019

11. SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share Capital

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 the authorized share capital was 1,000.000 ordinary shares of par value $1 per share, all of
which are issued and outstanding.

Additional paid-in capital

As at both December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had additional paid-in capital of $1,115 million. During the year ended
December 31, 2018, the Company reccived $100 million of additional paid-in capital from SSHL, its immediate parent
company. No additional paid-in capital was contributed to the Company during the year ended December 31, 2019.

12. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

The statutory capital and surplus amounts for the vears ended December 31. 2019 and 2018 for the Company and its
subsidiaries based in Bermuda. the United States and l.iechtenstein were as detailed below. The Bermuda requirements are
calculated at the consolidated Bermuda group level.

As of December 31, 2019

Bermuda .S, Liechtenstein
Required Statutory Capital and Surplus b 343,283 % 98,030 % 82,424
Actual Statutory Capital and Surplus b 685,938 § 192.657 § 191.950
As at December 31, 2018
Bermuda U.S. Liechtenstein
Required Statutory Capital and Surplus $ 276,241 § 72,082 % 71,605
Actual Statutory Capital and Surplus $ 749,525 §$ 156,963 § 205,551
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Bermuda

The Company is registered under the Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda and related regulations, as amended (the "Insurance
Act"). The Insurance Act imposes certain solvency and liquidity standards, auditing and reporting requirements and grants the
Bermuda Monetary Authority ("BMA™) powers to supervise, investigate. require information and the production of documents
and intervene in the affairs of insurance companies.

Under the Insurance Act, the Company is either required to or is prohibited from doing the following:

»  Required to maintain certain solvency and liquidity standards which includes maintaining a minimum liquidity ratic
whereby the value of relevant assets must not be less than 75% of the amount of relevant liabilities. Relevant assets
include, but are not limited to, cash and time deposits, quoted investments, unquoted bonds and debentures, investments in
morigage loans on real estate, investment income due and accrued, accounts and premiums receivable, reinsurance balance
receivable and funds held by ceding reinsurers, There are certain categories of assets which, unless specifically permitted
by the BMA, do not automatically qualify as relevant assets, such as unquoted equity securities. investments in and
advances to affiliates and real estate and collateral loans. The relevant liabilities are total general business insurance
reserves and total other liabilities less deferred income tax, sundry liabilities (by interpretation, those not specifically
defined). and letters of credit and guarantees.

»  Required to maintain a minimum statutory capital and surplus in an amount equal to or exceeding its Enhanced Capital
Requirement (“ECR™). The Company’s ECR is to be calculated by reference to the Bermuda Sclvency Capital
Requirement (“BSCR’) Model. The BSCR employs a standard mathematical model that correlates the risk underwritten by
Bermuda insurers to the capital that is dedicated to their business. The BSCR applies a standard measurement format to the
risk associated with an insurer’s assets. liabilities and premiums, including a formula to take account of the catastrophe risk
exposure.

-  Prohibited from declaring or paying any dividends if it were in breach of its minimum solvency margin or liquidity ratio or
if the declaration or payment of such dividends would cause it to fail to meet such margin or ratio.

»  Prohibited, without the prior approval of the BMA, from reducing by 15% or more its total statutory capital as set out in its
previous year’s statutory financial statements.

»  As a Class 4 Insurer, the Company is also required to meet a minimum margin of solvency, which is the minimum amount
by which the value of the general business assets of the insurer must exceed its general business liabilities, being equal to
the greater of: (i) $100,000,000; or (ii}) 50% of net premiums written (being gross premiums written less any premiums
ceded by the insurer (not exceeding 25% of gross premiums))} in its current financial year; or {iii} 15% of net losses and
loss expense provisions and other insurance reserves; or (iv) 25% of the ECR reported at the end of its relevant year.

The Company in aggregate exceeded its minimum solvency requirements by $343 million as of December 31, 2019 (2018:
$473 million) and was in compliance with its liquidity requirements.

Unifed States

As defined by the regulations of the state of Delaware, the maximum amount of dividends that can be paid by StarStone
National and StarStone Specialty to shareholders, without prior approval of the Insurance Commissioner, is subject to certain
restrictions. Dividends are not considered to be extraordinary and may be paid out of earned surplus without prior approval if
during the preceding twelve month period the dividends declared and paid do not exceed the greater of (1) 10% of surplus as
regards policyholders for the prior year or (2) prior year’s net income excluding realized capital gains. As of December 31,
2019, our U.S. subsidiaries exceeded their required levels of risk-based capital by $95 million (2018: $85 millien).

United Kingdom - Lioyd's

As of December 31, 2018, the Company participated in the Lloyd’s market through its interests in Syndicate 1301, which is
managed by SUL. The Lloyd’s operations are subject to supervision by the Council of Lloyd's. Lloyd’s prescribes, in respect
of its managing agents and corporate members, certain minimum standards relating to their management and control, solvency
and various other requirements.

The underwriting capacity of a member of Lloyd's is supported by providing a deposit (referred to as “Funds at Lloyd’s™)} in the
form of cash, securities or letters of credit in satisfaction of its capital requirement. The amount of the Funds at Lloyd’s is
assessed annually and is determined by Lloyd’s in accordance with applicable capital adequacy rules.
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Business plans, including maximum underwriting capacity, for Lloyd’s syndicates requires annual approval by the Lloyd’s
Franchise Board, which may require changes to any business plan or additional capital to support underwriting plans.

The Lloyd’s market has applied the Solvency 1l internal model under Lloyd’s supervision, and the Company’s Lloyd’s
operations are required to meet Solvency II standards. The Society of Lloyd’s has received approval from the PRA to use its
internal model under the Solvency II regime.

Liechfenstein

The Company's European insurance subsidiary SISE is based in Liechtenstein and is regulated by the Financial Market
Authority Liechtenstein (“FMA™). The FMA sets the solvency regime for insurance companies under its jurisdictions and it is
based on Solvency 1] framework directive, which took effect on January 1. 2016. SISE is required to comply with its regulatory
solvency requirements which is calculated using the Solvency IT Standard Formula methodology prescribed by European
Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority (“EIOPA™) as an appropriate basis for calculating its Solvency Capital
Requirement (“SCR™).

SISE’s available capital exceeded its solvency capital requirement of $82 million at December 31, 2019 (2018: $72 million).
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases
2019 Disclosures under ASC 842 - Leases

We adopted the new leasing standard and the related amendments on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective
transition method as required by the standard, and based on the detailed analysis of our operating lease arrangements we have
recognized a right-of-use asset and an offsetting lease liability on our consolidated balance sheet. relating primarily to office
space and facilities that we have leased tw conduct our business operations. On an ongoing basis we determine whether an
arrangement is a lease or contains a lease at inception and also complete an assessment to determine the classification of each
lease as either a finance lease or an operating lease. Our leases are all currently classified as operating leases.

Our leases have remaining lease terms of one year to 37 years, some of which include options to extend the lease term for up to
five years and some of which include options to terminate the lease within one year. We consider these options in determining
the lease term used to establish our right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Only those renewal options that we believe we are
reasonably certain to exercise are taken into account when determining lease terms, Our lease agreements do not contain any
material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

Since a majority of our leases do not provide an implicit discount rate. we use our collateralized incremental borrowing rate
based on the information available at the commencement date of the lease in determining the present value of lease payments.
The starting point for determining a collateralized incremental borrowing rate is our general unsecured borrowing rate, given
the term of the lease and the amount of the related lease payments. This base rate is then adjusted to reflect the effect of
collateral. Since adding collateral improves a lender’s level of security in a lending arrangement, it has the impact of lowering
our implied borrowing rate that we use to determine the present value of lease payments.

We also adopt a portfolio approach as permitied by ASC 842 whereby we use attributes such as the lease term to determine the
appropriate incremental borrowing rate to be used o determine the present value of lease payments. In this regard, we use the
same incremental borrowing rate for leases with a similar term while ensuring that the use of this portfolio approach does not
result in an outcome that would materially differ from applying the lease accounting guidance on a lease-by-lease basis.

We have lease agreements that contain both lease and non-lease components. For real estate leases, we account for lease
components together with non-lease components such as common-area maintenance costs as a single lease component.

As part of our adoption of the new leasing standard, we elected the practical expedient package as well as the hindsight
practical expedient permitted by the FASB in ASC 842. The practical expedient package covers the application of the new
leasing standard to leases that commenced before January 1, 2019, the effective date of the standard and gives an entity the
option of not reassessing, (1) whether any expired or existing contracts are or contain leases, (2) the lease classification for any
expired or existing leases, and (3) initial direct costs for any existing leases. The hindsight practical expedient permits an entity
to consider changes in facts and circumstances from commencement through to the effective date of the new standard when
determining the leasc term and assessing any potential impairment of the recorded right-of-use asset. All these practical
expedients were consistently applied to our leases as required by the leasing standard.

The table below provides a summary of the components of our lease cost including the gross sublease income received under
sublease arrangements related to certain office spaces that we have leased to conduct our business operations for the year ended
December 31, 20165:

2019
Operating lease cost b 1.620
Sublease income (200)
Total lease cost $ 1.420
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The table below provides a summary of the cash flow information and non-cash activity related to our operating leases for the
vear ended December 31, 2019:

2019
Operating cash flow information:
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities $ 1.626
Non-cash activity:
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations 3 1

The table below provides a summary of the leases recorded on our consolidated balance sheets for the year ended December 31,
2019:

Balance sheet classification 2019
Right-of-use assets Other assets $ 4,883
Current lease liabilities Accrued expenses and other payables 787
Non-current lease liabilities Accrued expenses and other payables 920

Weighted-average remaining lease term and discount rate used for our operating leases are as follows for the year ended
December 31, 2019:

2019
Weighted-average remaining lease term 21.4 years
Weighted-average discount rate 6.6%

The table below provides a summary of the maturity of the operating lease liabilities for the vear ended December 31, 2019:

2019
2020 $ 862
2021 267
2022 (125)
2023 8
2024 74
2025 and beyond 2,392
Total lease payments $ 3.478
Less: Imputed interest (1,771}
Present value of lease liabilities 3 1.707

2018 Comparative Disclosures under ASC 840 - Leases

As discussed in Note 2 "Significant Accounting Policies", en adoption of ASU 2016-02 as codified in ASC 842 on January 1,
2019, we elected the transition option in ASU 2018-11 which amended ASU 2016-02 to allow entities not to apply the new
leases standard in the comparative periods presented in the financial statements in the year of adoption. Under the transition
option, entities can instead opt to continue to apply the legacy guidance in ASC 840 - Leases, including its disclosure
requirements, in the comparative periods presented in the year they adopt the new leases standard.

Pursuant to the transition option provided in ASU 2018-11 which we clected on adoption of ASU 2016-02 on January 1. 2019
as discussed above, the following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments that were required under operating leases
that had initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2018:
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2018
2019 5 3.349
2020 3.000
2021 2,632
2022 1.550
2023 1.399
2024 and beyond 7,966
Total $ 19.896

Concentration of Credit Risk

We believe that there are no significant concentrations of credit risk associated with our cash and cash equivalents, fixed
maturity investments, or other investments. Cash, cash equivalents and fixed maturity investments are managed pursuant to
guidelines that follow prudent standards of diversification and limit the allowable holdings of a single issue and issuers. Other
investments are managed pursuant to guidelines that emphasize diversification and liquidity. Pursuant to these guidelines, we
manage and monitor risk across a variety of investment funds and vehicles, markets and counterparties. We are also subject to
custodial credit risk on our fixed maturity and equity investments, which we manage by diversifying our holdings amongst
large financial institutions that are highly regulated.

We have exposure to credit risk on certain of our assets pledged to ceding companies under insurance contracts. In addition, we
are potentially exposed should any insurance intermediaries be unable to fulfill their contractual obligations with respect to
payments of balances owed to and by us.

Credit risk exists in relation to our insurance and reinsurance balances recoverable on paid and unpaid losses. We remain liable
to the extent that counterparties do not meet their contractual obligations and, therefore, we evaluate and monitor concentration
of credit risk among our insurers and reinsurers. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are described in Note 6 "Reinsurance
Recoverable”.

We are also subject to credit risk in relation to funds held by reinsured companies. Under funds held arrangements, the
reinsured company has retained funds that would otherwise have been remitted to our subsidiaries. The funds may be placed
into trust or subject to other security arrangements. The funds balance is credited with investment income and losses payable
are deducted.

We are subject to credit risk if the reinsured company is unable te honoer the valuc of the funds held balances. such as in the
event of insolvency. However, we generally have the contractual ability to offset any shertfall in the payment of the funds held
balances with amounts owed by us to the reinsured for losses payable and other ameunts contractually due. We routinely
monitor the creditworthiness of reinsured companies with whom we have funds held arrangements.

We limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counterparty and none of our counterparty credit exposures. excluding U.S.
government instruments, exceeded 10% of shareholders™ equity as of December 31. 2019. Qur credit exposure to the U.S.
government was $179 million as at December 31, 2019.

Banking Facilities

In July 2009, the Company entered into a multi-currcncy revolving Letter of Credit facility with Barclays Bank Ple. to be
applied in the issuance of Letters of Credit to support its reinsurance business. The commitment under the facility is for $35
million (2018: $35 millicn) and as at the end of the year, Letters of Credit with a value of $28 million (2018: $27 million) have
been issued. This facility is collateralized by eligible assets of the Company in the form of cash and investments held in a trust
account. The terms of the facility require that certain financial covenants be met through the filing of compliance certificates.

Lloyd's Syndicate

The Company’s Lloyd’s Operations included in the conselidated financial statements represent its participation in Syndicate
1301. through its affiliste SGL 1. Syndicate 1301°s stamp capacity was £186 million or approximately $252 million for the
2019 underwriting vear {£216 million or approximately $275 million for the 2018 underwriting year). Stamp capacity is a
measure of the amount of premiums a Lloyd’s syndicate is authorized to write based on a business plan approved by the Society
of Lloyd's. The Syndicate stamp capacity is expressed net of commission as is standard at Lloyd’s. The Syndicate premiums
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recorded in the Company’s financial statements are gross of commission.

The Company pledged cash and investments to the Society of Lloyd’s to collateralize the business it assumes from SGL 1 under
the SGL. 1 Reinsurance and Leasing Agreements, which in effect assigned the Company’s participation in Syndicate 13G1°s
stamp capacity to SGL 1 as described in Note 1 "Description of Business".

At December 31, 2019, the Company pledged investments with a total fair value of $107 million (2018: $59 million) with the
Society of Lloyd’s to support its capital requirements with respect to SCC1’s participation in Syndicate 1301’5 capacity which
has since been assigned to SGL 1. This is in addition to the cash and investments of $238 million (2018: $121 million) pledged
by Kenmare as disclosed in Note ? "Related Party Transactions™.

If Syndicate 1301 increases it’s stamp capacity and the Company directly, or through its affiliate SGL 1, participates in the
additional stamp capacity, or if Lloyd’s changes the capital requirements, the Company may be required to supply additional
cash collateral acceptable to Lloyd's. If the Company is unwilling or unable to provide additional acceptable collateral, it will
be required to reduce its participation in the stamp capacity, whether directly or through its affiliate SGL 1.

Guarantees and Indemnifications

The Company has provided a variety of guarantees and indemnifications to its policvholders with respect to the obligations and
liabilities of its insurance subsidiaries arising from the reinsurance operations. The maximum exposure with respect to such
contractual guarantees are deemed to be minimal.
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14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 24, 2020, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.

Events after the end of the reporting period

The World Health Organisation (WHO), on 11 March 2020 , declared the coronavirus, COVID-19, outbreak as a global
pandemic. The Company is closely monitoring the outbreak and actively assessing the potential impact to all stakeholders. The
Company has a formal business continuity plan which is being continually reviewed in light of current developments and being
actively deploved as events require, which includes office closures where required. From an employee wellbeing and business
continuity perspective, the Company is proactively monitoring this outbreak by maintaining continuous dialogue regarding its
status and issuing periodic updates and guidance to all staff on preventative measures to maintaining good health. As the situation
evolves, the Company is regularly assessing the impact on solvency capital in line with established risk metrics and in compliance
with the Company’s risk appetite, including the impact following the recent volatility in the financial markets.

The long-term impact of this pandemic is unclear at this time due to the unprecedented nature but may have a significant impact
on the operations of the Company. The key areas within the consolidated financial statements that have the potential to be
impacted include valuation of the Company s investment portfolio, reserves for loss and loss expenses, reinsurance recoverables.
premiums receivable, and the deferred tax asset.



